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20 2037 12 31 20.315
20
2037 12 31 20.315
20 2037 12 31 20.315
20
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De Brauw

Blackstone Westbroek N.V.
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@
2016 31 2016
31 2017 31 2018 31 2019 31 2020 31
@
2016 31 [2017 31 |2018 31 [2019 31 [2020 31
IFRS(C )
25,022 25,989 28,575 28,839 28,334
(1,940) (991) 2,923 2,076 9,759
(1,440) (744) 2,194 1,120 7,411
B} . - 6,455 11,610
6,569 6,113 6,708 6,383 6,117
C )
113,000 113,000 113,000 113,000 113,000
18,780 18,036 20,230 31,215 42,825
2,218,997 2,044,153 2,467,390 2,591,283 2,827,759
166,195 159,611 179,027 276,239 378,982
(12,743.36) (6,584.07) 19,415.93 9,911.50 65,584.07
- - - 57,123.89 102,743.36
0.85 0.88 0.82 1.20 1.51
(7.38) (4.04) 11.47 4.35 20.02
(11,203) 69,510 (151,954) (66,202) (38,482)
10,929 (69,551) 152,162 66,557 38,332
270 225 422 779 600
« )
« ) 113,000
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@
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2020 31 EU EU
Brexit EU
2020 12 31 EU
2020 6 30 EU
Brexit
EU EEA
NIP EU
NIP EEA
NIP
Brexit
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NFPE
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EU
EU
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VaR
2020 31
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LIBOR
LIBOR IBORs
LIBOR
2012 2017 27 LIBOR FCA
2022 FCA LIBOR
LIBOR 2022 LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR 2021
LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
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250

2019 24

2019 28

2019 28
1,000

2020 2019 12
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2017 12 2012 10
D-SIBs
2015 12 D-SIBs
2016 0.5 FSB 2015
11 G-SIBs
TLAC 2018
G-SIBs D-SIBs
TLAC 2019
TLAC G-SIBs
2021 TLAC
116
@ 16
2018
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2016 MMF
@
2019 GDP 2019 - 2.1
- 0.0 10-12 7.3 2020 - 3.4
2019 -
2019 10
2020
2018
2020 Russell/Nomura Large Cap 18.7
2020 ROE 6.7 2019 9.2
2018
2019 2019 2019
2019 12 13 24,000
2020 17,000
2020
2019 1,591.64 2020
1,403.04 11.8 2019 21,205.81 2020
18,917.01 10.8
2019 10
2019 0.05
2019 0.295 2019
30
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10
110
105
2020
107.54
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118.64
ECB
2019 GDP
2019
FRB  25bp
2020
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FF
MBS
30 2019
10 2019
2019
EU
GDP 1999
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10 2020
2019 19 10
2020 0.165
10 2020 23 0.080
2020 16
2019
FRB
2019
2020 112
2020
102
2020 111
FRB
125
ECB
120 2020
2020
2019 FRB
2020
2020 -
2020
2.3 2018 2.9
2019
2020
4.8 FRB 2020
0.00 0.25
2020
2019 1.9 2020 1.5
25,929 2020 21,917 15
2.41 2020 0.67 1.74
2018 EU
2019
ECB 2019
2020 EU 2020
2020
2020 -
ECB
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2019 GDP 6.1
2018
2020
2019 2020
2020 28,334 28,839
26,429 19,531 953 804
13,639 33,793
27,707 34,073 9,759 2,076
2,348 956 2020 7,411
1,120 2020 11,610 6,455
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@
Q)
o
©
2020 2,784,934 224,866
2,442,668 149,856 2020
236,476 2,827,759
42,825 11,610
(D
2020 600 779
38,482
66,202
38,332
66,557
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1994 10 19 400
C )
2009 31 230
« )
C )
« ) 2020 220 230
( ) 2009 31 1994 10 19
230

28/195



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

29/195



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

2020 31

315,000 113,000 202,000
2020 31

454 113,000 -
113,000 - -
IFRS
100

2020 31

113,000 100

113,000 100
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193
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2020 31

2020 31 2019 31

3,27 28,334 28,839
3,27 (26,429) (19,531)
1,905 9,308
4,27 (953) (804)
5 93 €
6,27 (13,639) 33,793
7,27 27,707 (34,073)
8 24 _
15,137 8,127

9,10 (169) (133)
11,27 (5,209) (5,918)
(5.378) (6,051)

9,759 2,076

12 (2,348) (956)
7,411 1,120
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7,411 1,120
4,199 5,335
4,199 5,335
11,610 6,455
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2020 2019

31 31
5,13,23,24,25,27 1 239,071
13,14,23,24,25,27 74,831 80,157
16 4 -
74,836 319,228
5,13,23,25,27 2,442,667 2,053,741
13,14,23,24,25,27 53,545 44,839
5,13,15,23,27 600 779
5,13,16,27 256,111 172,696
2,752,923 2,272,055
2,827,759 2,591,283
17,26 6,117 6,383
26 1,321 1,321
26 14,892 10,643
18 20,495 12,868
42,825 31,215
13,19,23,24,26,27 315,818 439,064
13,20,23,24,26,27 917,855 1,057,153
13,14,23,24,25,27 182,263 158,917
12 3,062 172
1,418,998 1,655,306
13,24,27 781,313 575,681
13,19,23,26,27 64,332 63,756
13,20,23,24,26,27 413,668 218,037
13,14,23,24,25,27 98,322 38,382
12 51 66
13,21,27 8,250 8,840
1,365,936 904,762
2,784,934 2,560,068
2,827,759 2,591,283
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2019
17,26 6,383 1,321 8,624 2,019 12,868 31,215
- - - - 7,411 7,411
- - 3,983 - 216 4,199
- - 3,983 - 7,627 11,610
(266) - - 266 - -
2020 31 6,117 1,321 12,607 2,285 20,495 42,825
2018
17,26 6,708 1,321 - 1,694 10,507 20,230
IFRS - - 3,332 - 1,198 4,530
2018 6,708 1,321 3,332 1,694 11,705 24,760
- - - - 1,120 1,120
- - 5,292 - 43 5,335
- - 5,292 - 1,163 6,455
(325) - - 325 - -
2019 31 6,383 1,321 8,624 2,019 12,868 31,215
216
3,983
43 5,292
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2020 31 2019 31
7,411 1,120
(100,471) (48,884)
2,891 1,594
25 @)
13 (149,856) (109,965)
205,632 80,883
13,14,23,24 (3,380) (948)
13,14,23,24 83,286 48,108
16 (83,415) (42,044)
21 (605) 3,936
(38,482) (66,202)
13,19,23 - 6,171
13,20,23,24 515,136 388,895
13,19,23 (121,557) (56,597)
13,20,23,24 (355,247) (271,912)
38,332 66,557
(150) 355
(29) 2
779 422
15 600 779

2020 31 2019 31
(25,812) (19,139)
30,148 28,243
12 (424) (428)
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Ooooooog
2019 2020 31
502,820 (121,557) (4,539) 3,426 380,150
1,275,190 159,889 (103,556) - 1,331,523
1,778,010 38,332 (108,095) 3,426 1,711,673
2018 o 2019 31
552,739 (50,426) (5,246) 5,753 502,820
1,212,933 116,983 (54,726) - 1,275,190
1,765,672 66,557 (59,972) 5,753 1,778,010
1) 2019 31 IFRS

39/195



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NHI NHI
1096HA
Rembrandt Tower, Amstelplein 1, 1096 HA Amsterdam
33221661
NHI
2020 27
2.1
2020 31 EU
IFRS

2.2

24
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2.3

a)

b)

(H

©)

Q)

24
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(i)

FVO

2018 IFRS FVO

IFRS

FVO

FVO

FVO

IFRS
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12

12

IFRS

12

12
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12

PD CEAD
LGD
CEAD

PD
PD PD S&P
PD 12

PD

LGD

LGD

CEAD
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1))

FVO

h)

2.4

2.5

01C

4,809

IFRIC 23 -
IFRIC 23 IAS 12

IFRIC 23 2019
IFRIC 23

2.6
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1ASB

IFRS IAS 39
1ASB

1AS IAS
1ASB

1AS
2020 23 1ASB

IFRS

1AS

EU

EU

ooooooo
1ASB
EU 2020
1ASB IFRS
IFRS IAS 39
2020
1AS 2020
EU
1AS
a)
b)
©)
2022
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2020 31 2019 31
27 28,334 28,839
28,334 28,839
2020 31 2019 31
(209) (312)
77 (109)
27 (26,142) (19,107)
(1) ®3)
(26,429) (19,531)
2020 31 2019 31
(953) (804)
(953) (804)
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14

AAA
BBB+
BB+

cC

A-
BBB-
BB-
B+

2020 31
600 -
2,444,515 189
254,400 -
2,699,515 189
2019 31

779 -
2,296,567 282
169,186 -
2,466,532 282

2020 31 2019 31
128,376 124,996
(3,960) (1,153)
124,416 123,843

ccC
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2020 31
AAA / A- 263,552 - 263,552
BBB+ / BBB- 2,180,963 - 2,180,963
BB+ / BB- - - -
B+ / B- - - -
cce - - -
cc/D - - -
2,444,515 - 2,444,515
(189) - (189)
2,444,326 - 2,444,326
2019 31
AAA / A- 283,796 - 283,796
BBB+ / BBB- 2,012,771 - 2,012,771
BB+ / BB- - - -
B+ / B- - - -
cce - - -
cC/D - - -
2,296,567 - 2,296,567
(282) - (282)
2,296,285 - 2,296,285
2020 31
2019
252 30 282
1 - - -
2 - - -
(252) (30) (282)
188 1 189
2020 31
188 1 189
1)
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2019 31
2018
o) 174 11 185
1 - - -
2 - - -
(64) (11) (75)
92 30 122
46 - 46
4 - 4
2019 31
252 30 282
1) 2019 31 IFRS
2)
PD
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2020 31 2019 31
(26,282) 27,721
12,643 6,072
(13,639) 33,793

23

2020 31 2019 31
27,707 (34,073)
27,707 (34,073)
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2020 31 2019 31
24 -
24 -

2020 31 2019 31
(131) (102)
(19) (14)
(19) (17
(169) (133)

10
2020 31 14 2019 13 2020 31
14 2019
11

2020 31 2019 31
27 (3,745) (4,286)
26 (482) (475)
(832) (1,006)
(68) @n
27 an (62)
®) ()
(5,209) (5,918)
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2018 2022 31 APA
2019
APA NHI APA
NHI 3,745
4,286
12
2020 31 2019 31
(795) 474)
67 )
(10) (456)
(1,610) (24)
(2,348) (956)
2020 31 2019 31
9,759 2,076
25 (2,440) (519)
67 )
41 15
(20) (465)
4 15
(2,348) (956)
25 25 23.96 24.08
2021 21.7
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IFRS

IFRS

2020 31 2019 31
(66) 12
424 428
(728) (476)
319 (30)
(51) (66)
172) 2,931
(10) (1,114)
- (1,110)
- (399)
(1,610) (456)
(1,270) 24)
(3,062) 72
2020 31 2019 31
(3,494) (2,224)
396 2,442
45 66
(9) (456)
(3,062) 172)
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13

16

21

16

21

2020 31
2,442,668 - - - 2,442,668
- 128,376 - - 128,376
600 - - - 600
254,400 - - - 254,400
2,697,668 128,376 - - 2,826,044
- - 380,150 - 380,150
- - - 1,331,523 1,331,523
- - 781,313 - 781,313
- 280,585 - - 280,585
- - 3,960 - 3,960
- 280,585 1,165,423 1,331,523 2,777,531

2019 31
2,292,812 - - - 2,292,812
- 124,996 - - 124,996
779 - - - 779
169,186 - - - 169,186
2,462,777 124,996 - - 2,587,773
- - 502,820 - 502,820
- - - 1,275,190 1,275,190
- - 575,681 - 575,681
- 197,299 - - 197,299
- - 1,153 - 1,153
- 197,299 1,079,654 1,275,190 2,552,143
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@

2020 31 2019 31
27,214 22,410
52,122 53,917
42,351 31,611
5,517 15,213
1,172 1,845
128,376 124,996
103,757 90,736
42,173 50,857
95,284 51,211
25,773 1,662
13,598 2,833
280,585 197,299

2020 31 2019 31
1,209,039 909,592
1,132,843 1,384,985
445,554 544,973
255,100 30,100
257,329 229,365
3,299,865 3,099,015

16 21
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15
16
2020 31 2019 31
2020 31 2019 31
22,26 254,400 169,186
1,711 3,510
256,111 172,696
ISDA
17
454 315,000
454 113,000
2020 31 2019 31
8,402 8,402
113 113
454 454
51,302 51,302
119.235 124.415
6,117 6,383

60/195



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

373

18
19
a.
€))
b.
)
1) 2019 31

IFRS

oOoOooodn

2020 31 2019 31
8,402 8,402
6,117 6,383
2,285 2,019
2020 31 2019 31
439,064 525,609
- 5,013
(49,408) (22,537)
(73,361) (69,276)
477 254
315,818 439,064
2020 31 2019 31
63,756 27,129
- 1,158
(72,149) (34,060)
73,361 69,276
(636) 253
64,332 63,756
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a.
@
b.
€5}
1) 2019 31
6,463
16,101
97,399
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IFRS

2020 31 2019 31
1,057,153 879,272
313,675 303,714
(161,508) (24,628)
(239,469) (56,921)
(36,337) (31,030)
(10,591) (6,630)
(5.,069) (6,200)
1 (424)
917,855 1,057,153
2020 31 2019 31
218,037 333,662
201,461 85,181
(193,739) (247,284)
239,469 56,921
(6,661) (1,302)
(46,084) (8,900)
(155) @17
1,340 (23)
413,668 218,037
10,847
111,716
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2020 31 2019 31
3,960 1,153
4,290 7,687
8,250 8,840
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22
235,000
409,468

23

CRO

CFO EMB
EMB
EMB
GIRMC GIRMC
GIRMC
GIRMC
EMB
GIRMC EMB
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GIRMC GPC

CRO

GIRMC

LCC
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CRM

CRM

NHI
NHI  S&P
BBB+

S&P
NHI

1SDA

2.3 e

27

EMB

30
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@ (©))
(©)) *
®) ®

EMB NHI  CFO EMB

52.74 52.81
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2020 31
30 90
30 90
- 775,318 1,469,284 201,079 - - 2,445,681
- 775,318 1,469,284 201,079 - - 2,445,681
- 775,318 1,469,284 201,079 - - 2,445,681
2019 31
30 90
30 90
- 682,983 1,208,378 177,536 47,302 251,210 2,367,409
- 682,983 1,208,378 177,536 47,302 251,210 2,367,409
- 682,983 1,208,378 177,536 47,302 251,210 2,367,409
2020 31
30 90
30 90
- 5,916 18,366 42,398 81,954 266,648 415,282
188,908 17,686 118,017 142,172 502,823 626,679 1,596,285
- 163,850 409,867 211,952 - - 785,669
- 235,000 - - - - 235,000
188,908 422,452 546,250 396,522 584,777 893,327 3,032,236
188,908 422,452 546,250 396,522 584,777 893,327 3,032,236
2019 31
30 90
30 90
- 3,357 4,291 64,284 158,904 361,282 592,118
135,642 8,295 22,068 74,734 605,263 663,310 1,509,312
- 35,345 505,211 38,972 - - 579,528
- 276,410 133,058 - - - 409,468
135,642 323,407 664,628 177,990 764,167 1,024,592 3,090,426
135,642 323,407 664,628 177,990 764,167 1,024,592 3,090,426
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2020 31
30
30 )
(33,165) 1,933 3,705 14,267 36,977 74,804 98,521
(33,165) 1,933 3,705 14,267 36,977 74,804 98,521
- 1,684,417 372,772 13,306 103,520 156,641 2,330,656
- (1,688,847) (363,339) (14,318) (130,361) (140,353)  (2,337,218)
- (4,430) 9,433 (1,012) (26,841) 16,288 (6,562)
(33,165) (2.497) 13,138 13,255 10,136 91,002 91,959
2019 31
30
30 0
13,308 1,769 3,360 13,780 46,806 107,388 186,411
13,308 1,769 3,360 13,780 46,806 107,388 186,411
- 1,030,441 91,768 13,933 121,611 198,106 1,455,859
- (1,027,547) (92,942) (9,953) (126,348) (137,137)  (1,393,927)
- 2,894 (1,174) 3,980 (4,737) 60,969 61,932
13,308 4,663 2,186 17,760 42,069 168,357 248,343
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€))
@ ORM
(©)
EMB GIRMC
ORM 1) 2) 3)
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2020 31
1 - -
315,818 299,347 -
2019 31
239,071 237,964 -
439,064 431,971 -
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2020 31 2019 31
128,376 - 78,954 49,422 124,996 - 66,334 58,662
27,214 - 18,226 8,988 22,410 - 11,571 10,839
52,122 - 13,246 38,876 53,917 - 10,861 43,056
42,351 - 40,982 1,369 31,611 - 26,948 4,663
5,517 - 5,517 - 15,213 - 15,213 -
1,172 - 982 190 1,845 - 1,741 104
128,376 - 78,953 49,423 124,996 - 66,334 58,662

2020 31 2019 31
280,585 - 226,230 54,355 197,299 - 135,676 61,623
103,757 - 94,231 9,526 90,736 - 79,521 11,215
42,173 - 5,092 37,081 50,857 - 7,983 42,874
95,284 - 87,863 7,421 51,211 - 43,756 7,455
25,773 - 25,773 - 1,662 - 1,662 -
13,598 - 13,271 327 2,833 - 2,754 79
1,331,523 - 1,145,038 186,485 1,275,190 - 1,089,453 185,737
1,612,108 - 1,371,268 240,840 1,472,489 - 1,225,129 247,360
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31

OooooOodd

2020 31
58,662 61,623 185,737
(13,717) (403) 4,873
- - 199,977
7,041 (4,545) (136,432)
1,765 4,998 31,330
(4,328) (7,318) (99, 000)
49,423 54,355 186,485
6,685 (10,068) (6,202)

2019 31
52,432 54,942 55,624
6,096 8,748 5,414
- - 140,182
1,011 (5,013) (19,430)
2,542 8,643 58,144
(3,419) (5,697) (54,197)
58,662 61,623 185,737
16,926 (16,791) 5,412

IFRS 9
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0TC

1,765 2,542 4,998 8,643

1,630 2,577
4,561

7,510

4,328 3,419 7,318 5,697
4,010 2,043

6,776

3,742
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DCF
PCVG
PCVG
PCVG
CFO
CFO
MVG
MVG  CRO
Independent Price Verification Processes 1PV
1PV
1PV
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OooooOodd
PCVG MVG
2020 31
®
8,988 9,526 DCF %) 12.48-13.05%
38,876 37,081 DCF -0.13-1.12%
) 8.81-13.80%
(bp) 29.95-103.23
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98
1,369 7,421 DCF 0.00-9.28%
) 17.22-76.40%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.71-0.91
190 327 DCF 0.10-1.99%
35-35%
- 186,485 DCF 0.02-0.76%
) 8.81-13.07%
(bp) 29.95-57.50
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98

49,423 240,840
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OooooOodd
2019 31
(€))
10,839 11,215 DCF %) 14.59-15.13%
43,056 42,874 DCF 0.04-2.31%
%) 10.6-15.17%
(bp) 32.45-83.83
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98
4,663 7,455 DCF 0.00-6.61%
%) 6.67-54.48%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.7-0.91
104 79 DCF 0.24-1.35%
35-35%
- 185,737 DCF 0.04-2.31%
%) 11.5-15.20%
(bp) 32.45-60.90
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98

58,662 247,360

@
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512 640

2020 31 2019 31

640 625

(128) 15
512 640
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OooooOodd
25
2020 31
(€)) (©3) ®

67,409 - 67,409 (66,324) - 1,085

261,016 - 261,016 - - 261,016

328,425 - 328,425 (66,324) - 262,101

269,785 - 269,785 (62,364) (207,005) 416

3,960 - 3,960 (3,960) - -

273,745 - 273,745 (66,324) (207,005) 416

2019 31
() @ (©)

64,824 - 64,824 (63,841) (983) -

277,237 - 277,237 - - 277,237

30,220 - 30,220 (27,536) - 2,684

372,281 - 372,281 (91,377) (983) 279,921

185,019 - 185,019 (91,377) (93,642) -

185,019 - 185,019 (91,377) (93,642) -
)
@
®

1SDA
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2020 31 2019 31
6,117 6,383
1,321 1,321
2,285 2,019
9,723 9,723

380,150 502,820
315,818 439,064
64,332 63,756
1,331,523 1,275,190
917,855 1,057,153
413,668 218,037
781,312 575,681
781,312 575,681
2,502,708 2,363,414
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27

i NHI 11,029
8,688 ( ) NHI
1,880,106 1,509,600
NHI 235,000 205,900
NHI 65
21
i NHI
944 797
NHI 944 797
ii 11 NHI
3,745 4,286
22 4,286
iv. NHI
423 444
NHI 206 209
i 17,305
20,151
562,751 783,494
203,568
158 76
i
ii ISDA
67,409 269,785 64,824
185,019 ISDA
16
21
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2020

4,363
11,082

2020

10
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15,445 16,525
3,391
13,134

106
91

16 21

10
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29 -

7,411

2020 17

20
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
INCOME STATEMENT

Interest and similar income
Interast and similar expanse
Nat intarest income

Fae and commission axpansa

Cradit impairment gain/ loss)

Net trading incomea/(lass)

Met gain/{loss} on financial liabilities
designated at lair value through profit or koss
Other oparating gain/(loss)

Net operating income

Salaries and social charges

General and administrative axpansas
Total operating expenses

Profit bedore tax
Taxation exponsa

Profit for the year

Hote

327
azr

427

627

T2T

810
11,27

84/195

2020 2018
Millions of JFY Millions of JFY
28,334 28,839
(26.428) {19,531}
1,905 3,308
(953) (804)
53 (a7}
{13,639) 33,793
27.707 (34,073)
2.‘ -
15137 8127
(169) (133)
(5,209) (5.918)
(5.278) 16.051)
3,750 2,076
(2.348) (956)
7411 1,120
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2020 2019

Millicns of JBY Millions of JEY
Protit for the year 7,411 1,120
Other comprehensive income:
Mems that will not be reclassified te income statement:
Change in fair value attributable 1o change in tha
cradit rigk of financial Babilites designated at fair value
through profit or loss (after tax) 4,199 5335
Other comprehensive income for the year, after
tax 4,199 5,335
Total comprehensive Income for the year 11,610 6,455
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2020 2018

Mote Millions of JBY Millions of JBY
Mon-current assets
Loans and advances to affiliales 513.83.24.25.27 1 238,07
Darivative financial assets 13,14,23,24.25.27 74,831 20157
Other non-currant assets 16 4 -
Total non-curren assets 74 836 319,228
Current assets
Leans and advances to affiliales 513232627 2442 BET 2,053,741
Derivative financial assets 13,14,23,24,25 27 55 545 44 859
Cash and cash equivalants 513152327 B0 Tre
Other current assats 5131627 286,111 172.686
Total current agssets 2,752,923 2,272,055
Tatal azzels 2.827.759 2,501,283
Shareholder's equity and llabllitles
Shareholder's equity
Issued and paid-up capital 1725 8117 6,383
Share pramium 26 1,421 1,421
Reserve % 14,882 10,643
Retained sarnings 18 20,495 12,868
Tatal sharaholder's eguity 42.825 31,215
Non-current liabilitles
Debt issued and other borrowing 13.18.23,24.26,27 RAE-T kS 430,064
Financial labilties designated at fair
value through profit or loss 12,20,53,24.26.27 917,855 1,057,153
Derivative financial liabilities 13,14,23,24,25,27 182,263 15897
Daferred tax liabilitias 12 3.062 172
Tatal non-currant liabilities 1,418,958 1,655,306
Current liabilities
Borrowing from affiliates 132427 781,313 575,681
Dbt issued and cther borrowing 13,10,23.26.27 64,332 53,756
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss 13,20, 53,24.26.27 415,668 218,087
Derivative financial liabilities 13,14,23,24,26.27 98,322 38382
Income tax payable 12 51 L]
Other liabilities 132027 B.250 8,840
Tatal currant liabilities 1,365.936 04, 762
Total liabilfies 2,784 934 2,560,068
Tatal shareholder's equity and liabilties 2827 7558 2,591,283

Statement of Financial Pogition iz presented after appropriation of profit.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operational activities
Profit for tha year

Adjustments for:
Mat loas from financing activities
Mat gain from movemeants in deferred tax

Othars

Cperaling assets and operating liabilities:
Increase in loans and advances to affiliales
Increase in borrowing from afiiiates
Increase in dervative financial assels
Increase in derivative financial liabilities
Increase in other oparating assels
Increase/idecrease} in cther operating
liabilities

MNet cash flows used in aperating activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from debt issued and ather barrowing
Proceeds from financial liabilities designated at
tair value through profit or loss

Redemption of debt issued and other borrowing
Redemption of linancial labilties designated at
fair value throwgh profit or loss

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Net foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash equivalants a1 1 April
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

Operational cash flows

Interest paid
Interast recaivad
Taxes paid

88/195

Mote

13

13,1423 24
13142324
16
1

13,156,232

13,20,23.24
13,1923

182023 24

2020 2019

Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
7411 1,120
(100,471} (48,884)
2.8 1,594

25 [2)
{148,858) (103, 8965)
205,632 80,883
{3.380) [948)
83,288 48,108
(83.415) (42,044)
(B05) 3,936
{38,482) (66,202)

- 171

515,136 388,855

(121,557} {56,597)
(355.247) (271.912)

38,332 66,557

{150 ass

(28) 2

778 472

600 773

2020 2019

Millions af JPY Millions af JPY
[25.812) (19.13%)
30,148 28,243
(424) (428)
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate information

Memura Europe Finance NV, (the "Company”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Nomura Holdings, Ing,
{"NHI"), a company incorporated in Japan and listed in Japan, the United States of Amenca and Singapora,
which is also the ulimate parent of the Company.

The Company, incorporated and domiciled in Amsterdam, the Netherlands, is a limited liability company
under the Dutch law and its registered offlice is at Rembrandt Tower, Amstelplein 1, 1098 HA Amsterdam,
the Metherlands (Chamber of Commerze number 33221681).

The Company's principal activity is to act as a funding entity for NHI and its subsidianes (collectively the
‘Momura Graup”).

Tha Company's financial Satements for the yaar anded 31 March 2020 shall ba submitted 1o the Annual
General Meeting of Sharehalders on 27 July 2020 for adoption, The shareholder's meeting can reject the
financial statements but cannot amend them.

2. Accounting policies
21 Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 have been prepared in
aceordance with [ntermnational Financial Reponting Standards (IFRST) as adopted by the European
Union {"ELF). The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the requirements
in Part 9 Book 2 of the Dutch Sivil Code.

Tha financial staterments have bean prepared on a historical cost basis exeept for derivative financial
instruments and financial liabilties designated at fair value through profit and loss, which have all been
mizasured al fair value,

The financial statemants are presented in Japanese Yen ("JPY") and all valees are rounded to the
nearast million (“Millons of JPY") axcept where otharwise stated.

2.2  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management o make judgernents,
estimates and assumplions that allect the reporied amount of revenues, expenses, assels and kabdilies,
and the accompanying disclosures.

Fair value of financial instruments

Significant amount of judgements and estimales were applied to the fair value of certain financial assels
and financial liabilites, Various valuation techniques are used to determine fair values of financial assels
and financial liablities, where these fair values cannot be derved from an active market, Observable market
data is used in the valuation models as far as feasible. If no observable data is available, a degree of
Judgemaem is reguired to determine fair values, Detailed information about the fair value of financial
instrumeants and valuation techniques are set out in Mole 24,

Impairmment of financial assets

Tha Company assessas axpacted credi [ossas lor all loans and other dabl financial assats not kald at
fair value throwgh profit or loss, together with loan commitments and financial guarantes contracls on a
forward-locking basis. The Company recognises a loss allowance at each reporling date. Detailed
information about the judgements and estimates made by the Company when calculaling expected
credit losses are sat out in Note 2.3
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
23  Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Faorelgn currencles

The financial statements are presented in JPY, which is the functional and presentation curmency of the
Company.

Foreign currency transactions during the pericd are translated at the rates of exchange on the date of the
transaction.

Subssquent ta nitial recognition monatary lems are translated al clesing rate and nos-monatary items at
historical spet rate at each staternent of financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and kosses on
financial assets and financial liabilities that are monatary assels and monetary liabilities are recognised in
the income statement.

b}  Operating income
03 Interest income and expense

Irtarest income and expense for all financial instruments, except for those classified as derivatives held for
trading and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised under lnferest
and similar income or inferest and similar expense using the effective imerest rate ("EIR") method.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amontised cost of a financial asset or lability (or a group
of assals and liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interas! expense over the ralavant
periods. The EIR is the raie that exacily discounts the expected fulure cash payments or receipts
thraugh the expected life of the financial instrument, or when appropriate, a shorter period, 1o the net
carrying amoum of the instrument. This calculation takes nto account the impact of all fess and
commigsions, paid or received, direclly atiributable to the transactions, and discounts or premiums that
are integral part of the EIR method,

(i) Mat fess and commission incoma

Loan engination fees are mcognised in the income statement as an adjustment to the yield cn the financial
assels carmed at amortised cost using the EIR method,

Upfront fees received and paid on dervative financial instruments are recognised as pari of the initial fair
value rmeasuremaent of the related financial instument.

c) Fair value of financial instruments

Some of the financial instruments of the Company are held at fair value, A description of the Company’s
policies with regards to #s application of fair value measuremants to significant financial instrumants is
as follows:

it  Determination of fair values and fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, at fair value at sach balance sheet
date. For other inancial instruments which are measuned at amortised cost, fair values are disclosed in
Maote 24,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid o transfer a liability in an orderly
transaciion between market participanis af the measurement dale. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumgtion that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
In the principal market for tha assat or lability, or
In the absence of a principal markat, in the most advantageous market for the asset or labilty

The principal or the most advanfageous market must be accessible by the Company.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Where quated market prices or broker'dealer quatations are nat available for financial instruments,
prices for similar instruments or valuation pricing modeds are considered in the determination of fair
value, Such financial instruments are valued wsing models with significant unobservable inputs such as
correlation, long-dated volatilly, or other uncbservable inputs.  Valuation pricing modals consider
contraciual terms, position size, underlying asset prices, interest rates, dividend rates, time valee,
volatility and other statistical measuremenis for the relevant instruments or for instruments with similar
characterislics. These models alse incorporate adjustments relating to marked liquidity adjusimenis.
Thase adjustments are fundamental components of the fair value calculation process. The valuwation
technigue used maximizes the use of market inputs and minimizes the use of Company-specific inputs
which are unobsarvable in the market,

Valuation pricing models and their underlying assumptions impact the amount and timing of unrealised
gains and losses recognised and the use of different valuation pricing moedels or underlying assumgtions
could preduce diferent financial resulls. Any changes in the ficed income, equity, and lorakgn exchange
and commaodity markets can impact the Company's estimates of fair value in the future, potentially
affecting trading gains and losses and also gains and lossas on financial liabilities designated at fair
wvalue through profit or lass, The Company's estimates of fair value may involve greater subjectivity due
ter the lack of trangparent market data available upon which 10 base assumptions of underlying valuation
pricing models.

The Company applies exceplion in IFRS 13.48 to measure the fair value of financial assets and financial
ligkilities on the basis of mid-price, For hybrid instruments where embedded derivatives are separated
and financial instruments which are designated through prafit or loss, the exposure on such instruments
is offset by the hedging derivatives.

The Company does noi apply hedge accounting and all references to hedging in the notes 1o the
financial statements are to economic hedging.

All gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments that are classified as held
tor trading are recognised under Nef trading income{loss).

All assets and liabilties for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in aclive markels for identical assets or liabilities accessible by the
Company at the measuremant date,

Level 2 Quoted prices in inactive markets or prices containing ather inpuls which are observable, either
directly or indirectly. Valuation tachniques using observable inputs reflact assumptions used by
market parlicipants in pricing financial instrumenis and are based on data oblained from
independent market sources al the measurement date.

Level 3 Uncbservable inputs that are significant to the fair value measuremant of the financial instrument.
Valuation technigues using unobservable inputs reflect management's assumplions about the
estimates used by other market parlicipants in valuing similar financial instruments. These
;aluation techniques are developed based on the best available information at the measurement

ate.

For the purposa of fair value disclosures, the Company has detarmined classes of assets and liabilties
on the basis of the nalure, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above,

For assels and liabilties that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurning bagis, the
Company determines whether transfers have cccurred between Levels in the hisrarchy by re-assessing
calegaorisation at the beginning of each reporting pericd,

(i}  Recognition of day 1 gains and losses
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tha fair value of a financial instrument is normally the transaction price {Le. the fair value of
consideration given or received). However, in some cases, the fair value at inception will be based on
a valuation pricing medel incorparating only ebservable parameters in the market or on other observable
current market transactions in the sama instrument, without modification or repackaging. Whare such
valuation technigues are used to derive fair values from marke! chservable inpuls, the difference
betwean fair value and the transaction price is inifially recognised in the income statement.

Valuation techniques incorporating significant uncbservable parametars may also be used to determineg
fair value at inception. In sech cases, the difference between the transaction price and model value is
only recegnised in the income statemant when the inputs become cbservable or whan the instrument
ig derscognised,

(i)  Financial instruments designated at fair value through praofit or loss

The Company seeks to minimize the markel risks by entering into derivative agreementis to
sconomically hedge the exposures of medium term notes. The value of hedging derivative and the
associated note have the same performance which ofiset each other, thus by applying the fair value
option ("FVO") to notes the Company expects 1o reduce recognition inconsistency and valuation
wolatility.

Starfing from 1 April 2018, the Company applies the FVO to all newly issued nofes under IFRS 9. The
Company manages and evaluates performance of financial liabilties (issued notes) in such a way that the
measurament of the partiolio of notes at fair value through profit or loss provides more relevant information
for risk management purpeses and transparent understanding of the Company’s financial statements.

d} Financial instruments

Financial instruments within the scope of IFRS 9 are divided into three classifications; thosa measured
at amortised cost, those measured at fair value through profit or loss and those measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value through profit or loss, and all other financial
liabilities are measured at amortized cost unless the FYVO is applied.

Tha Company determines the classification of its financial assets on infial recognition except aquity
instruments and derivatives based on a combinafion of the entity's business model for managing the
assats and the instruments’ contraciual cash flow characteristics. Even though the Company's financial
assels may meet the criteria 1o be classified at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Company may. at initial recognition, apply the FVQ to those financial assels if deing so
aliminates or significantly reduces a measurament or recognition inconsistency (somatimes referrad to
as “acoounting mismatch”) that would athenwise arse from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising
gains and losses on them on differant bases.

{iy  Fimancial assets

IFRS 9 requires all financial assals, except equilty instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based
on a combination of the enlity's business medel for managing the assels and the instruments’
contraciual cash flow characteristics. A financial asset Is classilied and subsequently measured at
amonized cost, unless designated under FVO, it the financial asset is held in a Hold to Collect business
medal and the contractual cash llows are Solaly Payments of Principal and Interast.

Under this measurament category, the financial asset is measured at fair value at inflial recognilion
minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest
method of any difference betwean that initial amount and the maturity amount and adjusted for any
impairmeant allowance.

Business madal:

Thara are three business models entiied under IFRS @ for inancial assats:
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NOMURA EUROPE FINAMCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS
= Hald 1o Gollect - Financial assets held with the objective to collect contractual cash flows.

= Hokd to Collect and Sell - Financial assets held with the objective of both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assatls.

— Other - Financial assets hedd with trading intent or that da not meet the “Hold to Caollect™ and “Hold to
Collect and Sell” qualifying criteria.

Thia Company determings its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets 1o achieve its business objective. Factors considered by the Company in determining
the buginess model for a group of assets include how the cash flows from these asgets were collected,
haw risks are assessed and managed, how the asset's parfarmance is evaluated and reported to key
managemeani personnel and the frequency, value and timing of sales,

The Company manages a portfolio of financial assets through the Hold o Collect business model where
all of the lollowing criteria are mel:

= Tha portbolic is not held with trading intent or not managed on a fair value basis;

= Tha portfolic of financial assets s managed 10 realise cash flows solaly through collecting contraciual
payments over tha life of the financial asseds rathar thanm managing the cverall return on the portfolio by
bath holding and selling financial assets; and

- Any sales of financial assets are expected to be infrequent or insignificant.
2] Principal Pl

Te meeat the Hold 1o Collect business modal, the porticlic of financial assets are to be held by the
Company with the strategy of collecting cash flows from the financial assets specified by contractual
terms of the instrument. A financial assef can only be measured at amortised cost where the coniractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and intesest.

Principal for purposa of the SPPI test s defined as the fair value of the debt instrument at indial
recognition and theredore the contractual cash flow characteristics is determined based on a comparison
of contractual cash flows to the amount actually invested. 1 is nol necessarily the contractual par amount
of the debt instrument.

The most signiiicant elements of interest within a basic lending arrangement are that # is consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. Interest may also inclede a prodd margin,

{iy  Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amorized cost include the host contract of certain medium term notes that are
bifurcated and ofher borrowings. Financial liabilties at amortised cost are initially recognised on the
date when the Company becomes a parly to the contract. After inlial measurement, thase instrumaents
arer subsequently measwred at amortised cost using the EIR methed.

(i) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have bean designated by managament as
at fair value through proft or kss upon initial recognition when the designation eliminates, or
significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatmant thal weuld olherwise arsa from maasunng the assels
or liabilties or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis,

These instrumenis are measured initially at fair value and fransaclion costs are recognised in profit or
loss, For these instruments, fair value changas attributable to the Company's credit risk are presanted
in ather comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss, therety eliminating volatiity in
prodit or loss in relation to own credit adjustments, All olher fair value changes are presented in profit or
loss. Interest expenses, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value and transaction costs
associated to the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or less are recegnised under
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Net gainikoss) on financial Kabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, excepl for the
currency translation effect which is included in Met frading income/{less).

Loan commitmants designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are within the
scope of IFRS 9. These loan commitments are initially recognised on the date when the Company
becomes a party to the contract, and subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value
reported under Net gain{less) on financial kabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

(v} Derivative financial instrumeants

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss include dervative financial instrumants hald for
trading. Financial assets and financial liabilties are classified as held for trading if (1) they are acquired
or incumred principally for the purpose of sale or repurchase in the near term; (2} on initial recognition
they are part of a portlolio of Mentified financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or (3) they are derivatives, except
for a derivativa that is a financial guarantes or a designated and affective hedging instrumant.

Tha Company uses derivatives to economically hedge ils interest and foreign exchange. All derivatives
are recognised on the date when the Company becomes a party to the contract. Derivatives held for
trading are initially and subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Darivatives with pasitive and negative fair values are presented as assats and liabilities,
respectively, in the statement of financial position,

A derivative embedded in a hybrid instrument that alse includes a non-derivative host that is not a
financial asset is accounied for as a separate derivalive if (1) its economic characteristics and risks are
nat closely related to those of the host; (2) a separate instrument wilh the same lerms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and (3) the hybrd instrument is not measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

When a financial asset or financial liabily is recognised initially, the Company measures it at its fair
value plus or minus, in the case of a financial assat or financial iability not at faic value through prafit o
loss, ransaclion cosis that are diweclly attributable o the acquisilion or issue of the financial asset or
financial lability.

Darecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights (o receive cash llow fram the assel have expired or
whan the Company has transfarred its rights to recaive the cash flow from the assat and the Company
has transfermed substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, A financial liability is derecognised
‘when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expiras.

¥When an existing financial liability is replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially ditferent
terms, of the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification
is freated as a derecognition of the eriginal liability and a recegnition of a new liability, and the ditference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statemant,

e)  Impairment

Under IFRS 8, the Company is required 1o record a loss allowance for expected credit losses for all
leans and other debt instruments net held at fair value through profit or loss, together with loan
commitmenis and financial guarantee confracts, The loss allowance is measured based on the
expeciad cradil lossas that resull from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within
the 12 menths atter the reporting date unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
erigination, in which case, the loss allowance is measured based on the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrumant.
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Expected cradit losses shoukd be determined using all reasonable and supponable imformation which
is reasonably available at the Company's reporting date withowt undus cost or affor, including
informaticn about past events, cument conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, The
infarmation used should reflect factors that are specific to the abligor, general econamic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the lorecast direction of conditions at the Company's
reporting date. Information that is available for financial reporting purposes is always considered to be
available without undue cost or effort.

Tha genaral ECL impairment model iz used o measure expected credit losses against the majority of
financial instrurnems held by the Company which are subject to impairment through the ECL impairment
model under IFRS 9.

Expected credit losses represent the difference between the cash flows that the Company is entitled to
recaive in accordanca with tha confractual terms of the financial instrumant and the cash flows that the
Company ultimately expects to receive based on following model.

The measurement of expected credit losses under the ECL impairment model refiects:

+ Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

+  The lima value of monay; and

+ Reagonable and supporiable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, curment conditions and forecasts of fulure economic conditions,

Lifatime expected cradit losses represent expected cradit losses that would result from all passible
default evants aver the expected life of the financial instrument whereas 12 month expected credit
losses are the portion of lifetime expecled credit losses thal represant the expected credit lossas that
result from default avents on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the
raparting date.

In arder to determine whether 12 month or lifetime expected credit losses are used, each financial asset
and off-balkance sheat financial instrumeant baing individually or collectively assessed for impairment is
classified at sach raporling date inlo one of lollowing three slages of eradit quality deternoration sinca
the financial asset was initially recognised,

» Stage 1 = Perorming financial assets for which there has been no significant detencration in credit
guality since intial recognitian;

«  Stage 2 = Underpariorming financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in
credit quality since initial recognition but which are not credit-impaired; and

+ Stage 3 - Non-performing financial assets for which there has been a significant detericration in
credit quality since initial recognition and which have become credit-impaingsd,

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is inftially clagsified into stage 1
and is typically subsequantly continsausly monitored 1o determine whether a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred, at which point the financial instrument is reclassified to stage 2, A determination
of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred at each reporting date will primarily be
through a comparison of Momura Group's internal credit rating applied to the financial instrument at
acquisition, orgination or issuance and the intemal credit rating currently assigned to the financial
instrument at tha reporting date. A financial instrument will ba reclassified into stage 2 whara the intermal
credit rating has declined by more than a specific number of notches (one to four) depending on the
level of rating assigned at inflial recognition. If there is a further deterioration in credit quality such that
the financial instrument becomes credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then reclassified into stage
3.
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Internal ratings are assigned based on the assessment of the mid 1o long-term capability and certainty
of debit repayment (creditworthiness) in addition to the fundamental conditions (fundamentals) of a given
cbligor or facility. Internal ratings are reviewed regulardy and on an ad-hoc basis, 1o ensure that the
craditworthiness of a given obligor will ba duly and timely taken inte account.

A stage 3 financial asset can only ba classified out of stage 3 and into stage 2 or eventually stage 1
when it no longer meets the definition of being credit-impaired, namely when it is no longer probable
that the Company will not be able to collact all principal and interes! amounts due in accordance with
the ariginal or modified comractual terms of the financial asset,

A financial asset is credit-impaired whan one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated fulure cash flows of the financial asset have occurred since origination or purchase namely
and it is no longer probable thal the Company will be able to collect all principal and interest amounts
due in accordance with the contractual terms of the financial asset. The Company considers a linancial
instrument defaulted (which is fully aligned with the definition of credit-impaired) when there is failure of
an abligor to make paymants in full and on time of any financial obligations, markedly disadvantageous
modification 1o a confractual term compared with the existing obligation, bankruptcy filings,
administration, receivership, liquidation or other winding-up or cessation of business of an obligor or
ofher similar sitwations. In addition, there is a rebuttable presumption that regardless of the above
definition, default is deemed 10 occur and a financial instrument is credit-impained whan tha financial
instrumant is 50 days or more past due.

A financial instrument will continue to be credit-impaired wntil the cbligor cures the reasons for credit-
impairment or there has been a susiained cbservable period of repayment performance on the financial
instrumant. Determination of what constilutes a sustained period of repayment performance by the
cbligor depends on the nature of the financial instrument but will typically be for a pericd of & months or
more.

The allowance for expected credil losses recognised against stage 1 financial assets is determined
using 12 month expected credit losses. Conversely, the allowance against stage 2 or stage 2 financial
assels is based on lifetime expected credil losses.

Cradil-impaired financial instruments individually assessed lor impairment are typically wrilten-off when
further cash flows are deemed uncollectivle and when all commercially reasonable means of recovaring
outstanding principle and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is basad on
factors such as the occurrence of significant changes in the obligor’s financial posiion swch that the
cbligor can no longer pay the obligation, or that the proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay
amounts dua.

A write off of a financial instrumant such as a loan, receivable or debt security reduces the gross carrying
amount of the financial instrument. Write-offs are initially recognised against any existing allowance for
axpecied credil bosses and can relate to a financial instrument in its antirely or 1o a portion of it

Recoveries are recognised as a reduction of the provision for expected credit losses recognised through
aamings during the reporting pericd,

For sfage 1 and stage 2 financial instruments, interest income is recognised during the reporting pariod
al an amount determined by applying the eflective interest rate 1o the gross carrying amount of the
financial instrument,

For stage 3 financial assets, interest income is applied by applying the effective interest rate ("EIR") to
nal carrying amount of the financial assel namaly the gross carrying amount lass the allowance for
expected credi losses,

Measurement of expecled credil lasses:

Tha measuremeant of expected credit loszes through the general ECL impairment moded is typically
determined within the Company using loss rate models or discounted cash flow models depending on
the relevant staging of the financial instrument. A loss rate model measures expected credit losses for
an individual or portiolio of similar financial instruments through development of loss rales calculated
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thraugh an estimate of the probability of default ("PD") of the obligor and koss given default {"LGD")
which is applied 1o the expected credit exposure of the cbligor at default ("CEAD"). CEAD represents
the expected amount of credil exposure (Le amount owed to the Company) at the paint that the financial
instrumeant defaults.

PD inputs are determined by class of financial instrument and by internal Momura credit rating applied
te the financial instrument. PD inputs used by the Company are sourced from indusiry data and
validated based on historical experience. PD inpuls are prepared by referring to S&P's historic rating
migration data and PD iz calculated owar the nest 12 months for stage 1 financial instruments and over
the antire lifetime for stage 2 and 3 instruments.

Forward-looking information is incorporated into the PD inpuls by forecasting economic scenarios and
adjusting the base case inputs for at least cne oplimistic and pessimistic scenario,

LGD inpwts are determined by class of financial instrument based on historical experience of loss
rescovery rates lor similar linancial instruments and ather relevant industry data. LGD inputs are adjusted
to reflect the impact of collateral and integral credit enhancements.

For revolving and non-rewvalving loan commitments, the relevant absclute measure of CEAD represents
an estimate of the total amount of the facility which will be drawn by the obligor by the tima of default.
This theretfors includes any portion of the facilty currently fundad and an additional adjustmant based
on a conversion factor to estimate of further amounts which may be drawn,

Cash flows expected from collateral and other credit enhancements that are integral to coniractual
terms of the financial instrument and nod recognised separately by the Company are included in the
measurement of expected credil losses.

f) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented on a gross basis unless the Company has a
legally enforceable right to set off the financial asset and financial liability and the Company inends to
settle the financial assef and financial liabilty on a net basis,

g Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows has been prepared using the indirect method. Cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash in banks.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, adiustments for ned profit from financing activiies are non-Cash
itarms which include the effects of foreign exchange results, amertisation of dab! issued and other borowing
using the effective imerest rate method and FVYO valuation,

The meverment in the Deferred tax assels and Babiliies i included in the line item Others while the
moviemnent in the income tax receivabladpayable) is included in the line items Decreaseincrease) in ather
operating asgets and norease in operaling Kabiftes. Both these line Rems are presented undaer Nef cash
fows fromused in operaling actiaties.

h}  Taxation

Cumrent tax asssds and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured as the amount expactad to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilties are recognised for temporary difference between the camrying
amounts in the statement of inancial position and the tax base. Deferred tax azsels and labilities ane
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future faxable profit will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilized,

Thetax rates and tax laws esed to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantivaly enacted
as of the statement of financial position date,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANMCE N.V.
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24  Operating segment

Tha Company has ciganised #s business activities based on its products and services. As the Company
only engages in one cperating segment of financing activity, the gross and net assels and profitloss before
taxation as presanted in the face of the financial stalements are refated 1o the same segment. The majority
of the detit is issued to Japanesa investors. All loan payables, loan receivables and denvatives, except for
derivatives embedded in some of the medium lerm notes, are transacted with Nomura Group.

25 Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The accounting policies and estimates are congistant with those of the previcus financial vear, except
for balow:;

The Company includes valuation adjustrments in its estimation of fair value of certain over-the-counter
("OTC") derivatives relating 1o funding costs associated with these transacticns o be consistent with
how marked participants in the principal market for these denvatives would determine fair value. As parn
of its continuous review of the valuation methodologies applied by market parlicipants, the Gompany
refined the fair value meaasurement. The impact of the relinement was assessed as an increase in profit
before tax by JPY 4,808 million for the year ended 31 March 2020,

In addition, the following amendments lo standards have become effective and are relevant 1o the
financial statements of the Gompany for the year anded 31 March 2020:

IFRIC 23 — Uncerainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting lor uncertainties in income taxes. The interpretation is applied to the
datermination of taxable profit (lax loss), tax bases, unused lax losses, unused tax credils and lax rates,
when thare is unsertainly over income tax reatments under IAS 12, IFRIC 23 iz effective for annual
reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with early adoplion possitde. IFRIC 23 did not
have a material impact on the Company's financial position and perfarmance.

26 Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the fallowing new standards and amendments
te the sasting standards and interpretations which are likely to be applicable to the Company have
been issued by the IASB but not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2020;

Amendments {o References fo the Concepiual Framework in IFAS Standards

The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting describes the objective of, and the concepts for,
gemaral purposa financial reporting. The International Accounting Standards Board (CIASET) has
published its revised "Conceptual Framewark for Financial Reporting”, The amendments are endorsed
by EU and effeciive for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with early adoption
possible,

Based on assessment made, these amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company's financial position and performance.

8 and IFAS 7: Interes

The IASE has amended some of its requirements for hedge accounting, The amendments are designed
te support the provision of uselul financial mlofmation by companies durnng the penod of uncerainty
arising from the phasing out of interest-rate benchmarks such as interbank offered rates. The Board
has amended its new and old financial instrumens Standards, IFRS 3 Financial Instruments and 145
38 Financial Instruments: Recogniion and Measurement, as well as the related Standard on
disclosures, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The amendments are endorsed by EU and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with early adoplion possibla,

Based on assessment made, these amendments are not axpected to have a material impact an the
Company's financial position and performance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IASE issued 'Definition of Material (Amendments to 1AS 1 and |1AS 8)' to clarify the definition of ‘material’
and to align the defindion used in the Conceptual Framework and the standards themsalves., The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with early adogtion
possible. The amandments are not endorsed by EU yvet.

Based on assessment made, these amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position and performance,

BN gnts ial State

Arma
Man-gurrent

On 23 January 2020, IASE issued amendmeants 1o LAS 1 Presantalion of Financial Statements 1o clarify
the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-currentMore specifically, the amendments
spacily that a) the condiions which exist at the end of the reparting period are those which will be used
to determine if a nght to defer settlement of a liability exists b} management expectations about events
after the balance sheat date, for example on whather a covanant will be breached, or whether early
seftlement will take place, are not relevant ¢} the amendments clarity the situations that are considered
sattlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1
January 2022 with early adeption possible. The ameandments ara not endorsed by ELU yat.

Based on assessment made, these amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company's financial position and performance.

3. Interest income and expense

For the year ended

March 2020 March 2019
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Interest and similar Income
Leans and advances to affiliates (Note 27) 28,334 28839
28,334 28,8358
For the year ended
March 2020 Marech 2019
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Interest and similar expense
Debt issued and othar borrowing (208) (312)
Cash collateral received (Note 21) (77} {109}
Barrowing from affiliates (Mate 27) {26,142) (18,107)
Othars {1} (3}
(26, 429) (18.531)

Main reasons of the increase in Nef interes! income are the changes in market condilions af inferast, such
as interest rale gap between bommowing rate and lending rate where currencies are diflerent.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINAMCE N.V.
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4. Fee and commission expense

For the year ended

March 2020 March 2019
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Guarantes fee paid (Nole 27) {953} (BO4)
(953} {804}

5. Expected Credit Loss

Tha tabla below shows the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk and loss allowances of financial
instruments subject to impairment as of the reporting date. Certain off-balance shed instruments which
expose the Company to a risk of loss due to default by the parties underlying these confracts are also

disclosed.

As of March 2020

Maximum exposure

Loss allowance or

to eredit risk provision

Milligns of JPY Millions of JPY
Cash and cash equivalents 600 .
Other debtors 2,444,515 188
Cash collateral placed (Note 16) 254,400 .
Tatal 2,689 515 189

As of March 2019

Maximum exposure

Loss allowance or

to credit risk provision

Millicns of JPY Milkons of JFY
Cash and cash equivalents g -
Other debtors 2,296,567 282
Cash collateral placed (Note 16) 168,186 -
Tatal 2 465,532 282

The following table containg an analysis of the masimum credit risk exposune fram linancial assss not

subject to impairment:

As of
March 2020 March 2019
Carrying value Carrying value
Millions of JPY Milliens of JPY
Derivative financial assets (Note 14) 128,378 124,986
Cash cellateral received (Mote 21) [2,960) {1,153}
Total 124,416 123,843
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Below table represents the credit risk exposure of loans by internal credit ratings and period end stage
classification. Internal rating calegories are split as follows:

1) 7 grades in high credit quality catagory; from AAA 1o A-

21 3 grades in good credit quality category; from: BEB+ to BBB-

3) 3 grades in speculative cradit quality category; from BE+ to BB-

4) 3 grades in highly speculative credit qualiy category; from B+ to B-
5) 1 grade in substantial credit risk quality category: CCG

B) 3 grades in default grade categony; rom CC 1o D

Internal credit ratings are assigned taking into congideration the effects of economic fluctuaticns, to
assess creditworthiness of an obligor in one year or longer from the mid to long-term perspective. In
particular, imernal credit ratings are assigned based on the assessment of the mid 1o long-term
capability and cartainty of debl repayment in addition 1o the fundamental conditions of a given abligor
or facility.

As of March 2020

Staﬂe 1 Stage 2 SIEE 3 Total
Millions of Millions Millkons Millions of
JPY of JPY of JPY JPY

Internal Credit Rating
ABA [ A- 283,552 . . 263,552
EBB+ /BBB- 2,180,963 . . 2,180,983
BB+ /BE - - = -
B+/B- - - -
CCC - - - -
CC'D . . . -
Gross carrying amount 2,444,515 - - 2,444,515
Loss allowance {189) - . (189}
Carrying amount 2,444,326 - - 2,444,326

As of March 2019

Stage 1 Stage 2 Slage 3 Total
Millions of Millions. Millkons Millions of
JPY of JBY of JPY JPY

Imternal Credit Rating
ABA A 283,796 - . 233,796
BEE.  BRE- 2m2,771 X . 2,012,771
BB+ /BB - - . .
B+/B- - -
CCC . -
CC/D - - - -
Gross carrying amount 2,296,567 - . 2,206,567
Loss allowance (282) - - (282)
Carrylng amount 2,296,285 . . 2,286,285
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The following table explains the changes in loss allowance for the Company's financial instruments
batween the baginning and the end of the paricd:

Loss allowance as at 1 April
2019

Transfers 1o staga 1

Transfers to siage 2

Transfers to stage 3

Financial assets derecognized
during period

Mew financial assets oniginated
or purchased

Write offs

Changes in modelrisk
paramelars

Foraign exchange adjusiments
Loss allowance as at 31
March 2020

Loans and
advanced to Lean
affiliates commitments
Stage 1 Stage 1 Tatal
Millicns of
Milkans aof JPY Millions of JPY JPY
252 30 282
{252} (30) (282)
188 1 189
188 1 189

1} The Compsry did not hanse any inancial assals or olf-balance shes lirancal nstruments dassied as Stage 2 or Stage 3

during the repoeting period,

Loss allowance as at 1 April
2018

Transfers to stage 1

Transfers o stage 2

Transfers to slage 3

Financial assets deracognised
during period

New inancial assels onginated
or purchased

Write offs

Changes in medelirisk
parameiers

Foreign exchange adjusiments
Loss allowance as at 31
March 2019

Loans and
advanced to Loan
aflillates commitmenis
Stage 1 Stage 1 Total
Milliens of
Millions of JPY Millicns of JEY JPY
174 1 185
(G4} (11} {75)
az a0 122
46 45
4 4
252 30 282

1} Baginning balances for 31 March 2019 moevement tables are adjusted beginning balances dus to initiad application of IFRS.
.

2 The Company did not have ary linanclal assets o olf-balance shiet linancal nstruments classified as Stage 2 of Stage 3

during the repcing period.
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Due to impact of COVID- 19 pandemic, PD rales used in the expected cradit loss cakulation as of 31
March 2020 increased substantially. On the other side, subordinated loans given by the Company were

fully repaid during the latter half of the financial year ended 31 March 2020, resulting in a net decreass in
the loss allowance as of 31 March 2020, compared to the loss allowance as of 31 March 2019,

6. Nettrading income/loss)

Faor the year ended
March 2020 March 2019
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Mat trading incomel(loss) on derivative financial
instrurnents (25,282) 27,72
Net foreign exchange gains 12,643 6,072
13,639 33,793

Tha Company manages tha risks ariging from fluctuations in foreign curmency exchanges and interest rates
with the wss ol derivative instruments. The gains and losses on derivatives, which are held for risk
managemeant purposes (o offse! these fluctuations are included in Nel frading incomeloss),

Fer hybrid instruments where the embedded derivatives are separated and measured at fair value, the
gains and losses on hedging derivatives are ofiset by the gains and losses on embedded derivativas. For
the instruments which ane not bifurcaled, the gains and losses on hedging dervatives may cause fluctuation
in the recognition of gains and losses in Net trading incomeioss).

The vast majority of the decrease in Net trading incormefioss) for the year ended 31 March 2020
compared to the year ended 31 March 2012 is resulting from the hedging derivatives associated to the
financial labiliies designated at fair value through profil or less. This decrease is ofiset by a
cormesponding increase in the Net gainfloss) on financial labiities designated al fair value through
pralit o lass (Mate 7).

Rizk managemant, for information regarding the nature and extent of the Company’s dealing with financial
instruments, is disclosed in Mate 23,
7. Net gain/{loss) on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

For the year ended

March 2020 March 2018
Millions of JPY Milligns of JPY
Net gain{loss) on linancial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss 27,707 (34.073)
27,707 (34,073}

Interas! expenseas, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value and transaction cosls associaled
wilh the financial liabilities designated at fair value threugh profit of loss are recognised under Net
gainvfloss) on financial fabiities designated at fair value through profit or foss, except for the curmency
translation effact which is included in Nef traging incomefioss) (Note B).

This increase in Ne! gaiviloss) en financial fabilties designated at fair value through profit or loss is

largely offzet by an increasa in Net frading income{ioss) (Mote 6) resulting from the hadging derivatives
associated 1o the financial liabilties designated at fair value through profit or loss,
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8. Other operating gains

Miscellaneous gain

9. Salaries and social charges

Salaries
Pansion premium
Social charges and walfare

10. Number of employess

For the year ended

March 20230 March 2019
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
24 -
2" =

For the year ended

March 2020 Mareh 2019
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
{131} (102}
{19} (14)
{151 {17}
(169} {133}

Tha Company had 14 employess working in the Netharlands as of 31 March 2020 (2019; 13). 7 of the 14
employeas wera working part time as of 31 March 2020 (2019: B).

11. General and administrative expenses

Advance pricing arangement
adjustment (Mote 27)
Sub-contractor fees (Notes 26)
Taxes other than income tax
Prafessional fees
Administrative (Note 27)
Others

Advance pricing arrangement

For the year ended
March 2020 March 20149
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
(3, 745) {4,286)
(482) (475)
(832} {1,008)
[{:1] (B87)
(77} {62)
(5} (2}
{5.208) {5.918)

The Company has a unilateral advance pricing agreement (the “Unilateral APA”) in place for the
avaidance of dauble taxation inthe Matherlands and in Japan, for which Dutch tax autharities approved
the renewal request on 5 June 2019, effective for the pericd starting from 1 April 2018 and ending 31
March 2022, For the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020, NH| and the Company agreed
to setile the adjustment in line with the terms of the Unilateral APA, Consequenily, for the year ended
31 March 2020 JPY 3,745 million (31 March 2019: JPY 4,286 million) adjustment amount payable to
MHI is included in the above account line item advance pricing arrangament adjustment.
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12. Taxation
Tha components of the taxation expense for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are as
follows:
For the year ended
March 2020 March 2019
billions of JPY Millions of JPY
Currant tax:
Current income 1ax (795 (474}
Adjusiment in respect of current income tax
of prior years &7 (2}
Defered tax:
Effect of change in income tax rate {10} (456)
Relating to temporary differences (1,810} (24}
Taxation expense (2,348} (956}
For the year ended
March 2020 March 2019
Millions of JFY Millicns of JBY
Profit bafore tax 9,754 2,076
Al Dutch statutory income tax rale of 25% [2.440) (519)
Adjustmant in respect of current income tax of
prior years &7 {2}
Eftect of tax adjustment for realised OCA 41 15
Eflact of change in incoma tax rate {20y [485)
Efiect of permanent difference between taxable
income and accaunting profit 4 15
Taxation expense [2,348) (S56)

The nominal tax rate for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2020 is 25% (2019: 25%) while the effective tax
rate iz 23.96% (2019 24.08%). The income tax rate will be reduced 1o 21.7% in 2021, The impact of this
change is included above in Effect of change in Income fax rate.
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Tha movemams in the income tax receivable and defered tax assets and labilties are as follows:

For the year ended
March 2020 March 2019

Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Income tax (payable)recelvable
Beginning balance =57 12
Payrrant 424 428
Charged 1o income (728) (476)
Cihar movements 39 (=0}
Ending balance (51} (3]
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities)
Beginning balance (1172 283
Deferred tax attributable lo increase in own credit
risk (10} (1,114}
IFRS 9 adjustment attributable to own credit risk = (1,110}
IFRS  beginning balance adjustmant ather than
awn credit reserve . (389}
Effect of change in income tax rate (1,610) (456}
Decrease related o temparary differences [1,270) (24}
Erding balance (3.082) {172}

Deferred tax assets and liabilties are recognised for temporary differences between the camying
amounts in the statement of financial position and the tax base. Delerred taxes cccur due to the
differences in tax base measurement and recognition timing of faxable income. The majority of the
delerred tax assets and labilities of the Company pertain 1o the valuation of the dervative financial
instruments and financial iabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

The components of the deferred tax recognized in the statement of financial position for the years ended
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are as follows:

Far the year ended
March 2020 March 2019

Millions of JEY Milliens of JBY

Deterred tax attributable to own cradit risk [3,454) (2,224)
Valuation of financial instruments 398 2442
Loss allowances for financial instruments 45 66
Effect of income tax rate change {9} (455)
(3,082 172

107/195



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

SeIge!] [eI2UBLY [B)O]

(12 ®lopN) peAIBDR) [BIREI0D YSED -
SEIIqE]| JeUic
Sa11)|1gE| (BB BAEALS
sajeype woul Buimolog
s20) 10 Poud yBnouy)
anjen Jig) e peleubisep se)iqe| [EoueulS
Buimouog Jeio pue penssi 1qa0

S}@SSE [BIJUBLY [B)O]

(91 SloN) [eiejeo0 yses -
S1Bsse JBYID
suaemnbe yIBD puE Ysen
S1SSSE [BIAUBUI SAIRALS
sSlE|IE O] SEUBARE DUE SUEOT

LEG LIS 25 1EEL E2FSaL L SES5 08E .
096'E - 096e . -
585082 - - 585’092 -
ELELEL - 5§71 - -
EZSLEE'L £25' 1881 - -
051'08€ - 05Lose -
0928’2 - SLEEEL 899 /692
(Wi T - - 00F'¥52
009 - - 008
g/e'gzl - 9821 -
BOOZIY'Z - - FO9ERP'2
jeyaL s50] 10 1502 pas|Uowe je 550| 10 1502 pas|uowe
Woid yBnosyyanjer  sanlqe) ejlpuedld  jold yBnoayy snjea 1e siasse [ejaueu)d
1|} ye pajeuBsap 11e} 1e Ajuojepuepy

Saliiqer 1ejaueu)d

Adl J0 SUCHIN

020 YMep jo sy

AJELILINS UOIIEIYISSE]D SIUSWNIISU [BI2UBLLY 'S
SINIWILY LS TVIONYNI4 IHL OL S3LON
AN FDNYNI4 340HN3 YHNINON

108/195



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

EVL255'2 061581 FSIELDL 662 /6 -
£5L°L - ESLL - -
66Z°L6 - - 662 LB -
L89°GLS - Lag'GLg - -
06LGLZ'L 06L'GLEL - -
0Ze'Zog - 028205 -
£L1°185'2 - GEE YRl LLUEEE
agL'6al - - EEINCETS
6L - - BLL
966 PZL - SEE'FEL =
Ziezez'zs - . Z1g'zege
|eyal $50] 10 1500 pas|UolWe jg $50| 1o 1509 pas|HowWe
ywoud yBnosyyanjen  sapge)) jejoueu)y  wposd yBnodyy enjea e sjesse |ejouel)d
Jje} 1e pajeub|sap 11 e Ajuojepuep

S2qUIgE 1ejoueuld

Al O SUCHIY

BL0Z Ynep jo sy

SEIGE| [BIIUBLY (B0 ]
(12 8loN) ponasel [Biale|od yses -

SEIIqE]| JeUyic

SalIgel| [BIOUBL SARALS

saje|ye wol) Bumouog

550 10 pyoud yBnouy)

anjen g} je pejeubisep sep|iqe| [eouBL

Buwoiiog Jeyio pue peanss jgag

S]8SSE [BIJUBLIY [B)D]
(g1 ejoN) [BI8E0D UseD -

slesse Jeyin

siusjeainbe yses pue ysen

SIESSE [RIDUBUY SAlBALSE]

SHIE|IYE O} SSIUBAPE PUB SUROT

SINIWILYLS TVIONYNIH 3HL Ol S3LON
"N FINVNIJ 3d0HN3 VHNINON

109/195



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
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14. Derivative financial instruments™

As of
March 2020 March 2019
Millicns of JBY Millions of JFY
Positive fair values
Fulaign exchange ralated derivatives 27,214 22,410
Interast rate dervatives 52,122 53.017
Equity derivatives 42,351 31.611
Commoedity derivatives 5517 15.213
Credit dervatives 1,172 1,845
128,376 124 596
Megative fair values
Foreign exchange related derivatives 103,757 90,736
Interest rate derivalives 42173 50,857
Equity derivatives 95,284 51.211
Commedity derivatives 25773 1.852
Credit derivatives 13,598 2.833
280,585 197,299

Above figures in fables consist of current and non-current derivative financial assets and dervative
financial liabilities.

Az of
March 2020 March 2019
Millicns of JPY Millions of JPY
Naotional amounts
Foreign exchange related derivatives 1,208,038 909, 592
Interast rate dervatives 1,132,843 1,384,585
Equity derivatives 445554 544 573
Commodity derivatives 255,100 30,100
Credit dermatives 257,328 228,368
3,288,865 3,088,015

All the above figures in tables include bifurcaled embedded derivatives, Each derivative classification
includes dervatives ralerencing multiple risk components. For example, interest rate contracts include
complex derivatives referencing interest rate rigk as wall as foreign exchange risk,

All foreign exchange related derivalives and oiher derivatives mentionad above, excep! for bifurcated
embedded derivatives, are transacted with Nomura Group.

The Company uses dervatives for hedging purposes in the management of its medium term notes
portiolio. This enables the Company to mitigate the market risk and interes! rate risk arising from its
assets and liabilities.

When calculating the fair value of derivatives, the credit and debit valuation adpstments are taken into

account. The credit and debit valuation adjustments are minimal as the Gompany exchanges cash
collateral (Notes 16 and 21).
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
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15. Cash and cash equivalents
The balance only comprises of cash in banks wiich is unrestricted for disposal.

16. Other assats
As of

March 2019
Miliang af JPY

March 2020
Milligns of JPY

Other non-current assets:

Facilities and Equipments 4
“
As ol
March 2020 March 2018
Milligns of JPY Millions of JPY
Othar currant assets:
Cash collateral (Nofes 22 and 26) 254,400 168,186
Others 1,711 3.510
266,111 172 696

Under International Swaps and Derivatives Association ("ISDA”) Credit Support Annex signed with related
parties, the Company posts Gash collateralto dervative countarparties related to darivative transactions.
Cihers mainly include accrued interest income,

17. Issued and paid-up capital and reserve

The authorised share capital consists of 315,000 ordinary shares of Eure ("EUR") 454 par value per share.
The issued and paid-up share capital comprises of 113,000 shares with EUIR 454 par value per share.

Details of the issued and paid-up capilal are as follows:

As of
March 2020 March 2019

Issued and pald-up capital at historical cost

{JPY Millions) 8,402 8,402
Issued and paid-up shares (Thousands) 113 113
Par valug per share (EUR) 454 454
Issued shares at par value (EUR Thousands) 51,302 51,302
Exchange rate (EUR-JPY) 118.235 124.415
Issued and paid-up capital {(JPY Millions) 6,117 5,383

Difference batween issued and paid-up capital and issued and paid-up capital at historical cost is presented

under resarves as follows:
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As of
Mareh 2020 March 2019
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Issued and paid-up capilal at historical cost 8,402 8,402
Issued and paid-up capital 6,117 8,383
Translation difference 2,285 20149

Az required by Aricle 2:373 paragraph 5 of the Dutch Civil Code the lssued and paid-up capital account
is measured using the shares issued and paid-up at par and translated using the closing rate from EUR
to JPY as of the statement of financial position date. The diference betwean the historical cost and the
carrying amount of the issued and paid-up capital as of the statement financial pesition date is recorded
under Cuwrency franslation reserve account.

18. Dividends paid
Mea dividend was declaned or paid during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2015

19. Debt issued and other borrowing

a. MNon-cument debt issued and ather barrowing

For the year ended
March 2020 March 2019
Mimons of JPY Milions of JPY
Beginning balance™ 439,064 525,609
Issues - 5013
Redemptions (49,408) {22,537}
Reclassifications o current liabilities {73,361) {69,278)
Other mavemeants (477) 254
Ending balance 315,818 433,054
b, Current debi issued and other borrawing
For the year ended
March 2020 March 2012
Millions of JEY Milliens of JEY
Baginning balance™ 63.756 27129
Issuas - 1,158
Redemptions (72,145) [34,060)
Reclassifications from Ron-cument labilities 73,351 89276
Other movements {636) 253
Ending balance 4,332 63.756

1} Beginning balances for 31 March 2019 movement lables are adjusted beginning balances due to initial application of IFRS
1

In the abowve tables, Other movements are mainly related to the effects of the foreign exchange resulls
and amertisation of debl lssued and other borrowing using the EIR method.
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20. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

a. Mon-current financial liabilities designated at fair value throwgh profit or loss

Far the year ended
Mareh 2020 March 2019
Mmqns of JFY Millions of JPY

Beginning balance!™ 1,067,153 879,272
Issues 313,675 303,714
Redemptions (161,508) (24,628)
Reclassiications 1o

current liabiliies (239 469) (56.,921)
Foreign exchange resulls (36,337) (31,080)
Unraalised revaluations (10,591} {6,630)
Changes in own credit (5.089) (B,200)
Other movements 1 (424)
Ending balance 917,855 1,057,153

k. Current financial labilties designated at fair value through profit or loss

For the year ended
March 2020 March 201%
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY

Beginning balance!™ 218,037 333,662
Issues 201,481 BS, 181
Redemplions (193,733) (247.284)
Reclassiications from

nen-current liabiliies 239,469 58,921
Foreign exchange result {6.661) 1,302)
Unrealised revaluations [46.084) {8.200)
Changes in own credit (155) (217)
Oiher movements 1.340 (23]
Ending balance 413,668 218,037

1} Baginning balances for 31 March 2019 movement taldes are adjusted beginning balances due to initial application of IFRS
b1

The impact of fair value changes attributable 1o the Company's own cradit risk included in other
comprahensive income on financial Babilties designated at fair value through profit or loss is an
unrealized gain of JFY 5424 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 (JPY 6,463 million gain for the
finrancial year ending 31 March 2013). The cumulative valuation adjustmenis resuling from own credit
is an unrealised gain of JPY 16,101 million as of 31 March 2020 {31 March 2012 JPY 10,847 million
gain). The Company calculates the own credit spreads refermng to secondary market prices,

Tha carrying amoum is [ower than the contractually dus amount for the firancial fabilities designated

at fair value through profit or loss by JPY 97,393 million as of 31 March 2020 {2019 the carrying amount
is lower than the contractually due amaunt by JPY 111,716 million).
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21. Other liabilities

Az of
March 2020 March 2019
Milligns of JEY Millions of JPY
Cash collateral received (Motes 23 and 27) 3,960 1,153
Others 4,250 7687

.25 5,840

Under ISDA Credit Support Annex signed with related parties, the Company receives Cash collateral from
derivative counterparties related 1o dervative transactions. Others mainly include accrued inferest expense
and other accrued expenses.

22. Commitments and contingent liabilities

The Company has JEY 235,000 million unsetted lcan commitmeants 1o Nomura Group companias as of 31
March 2020 (2019: JPY 408 458 million). Unsedtled loan commiiments are hedd off balance sheat, uniil the
point at which they becoma drawn.

23. Risk management

Tha Company's risk managemeant activities imvolve both the assessment and transfer of certain risks which
the Company must manage. The most imponant types of sk are marke risk, credit sk, liguidity risk and
operational risk. Market risk mcludes curency risk, price risk, and interest rate risk.

The Company’s primary objective is 1o act as a financing vehicle for Nomura Group, To this end, the
Company issues debl with relums linked 10 a variely of difierent indices including but not limited to
eqjuities, interest rate, foreign exchange, credit and commodities. The Company actively manages the
resultam risk using derivative financial instruments with the inention of eiminating significant market
risk arising from such instruments. The Company transacts these derivative instruments solely with
othar entitieg within Nomura Group,

The Company’s financial instruments include loan advances, cash collateral deposited 1o or received
frem ciher entities within Nomura Group, debl issued and other borrewing, financial instrumenis
designated at fair value through profit or loss and derivatives and borrowing from affiliates,

Ri it

MNomura Group has defermined the maximum level and types of risk that it is willing to assume in pursuit
of its strategic objectives and business plan and has aticulated this in its Risk Appetite Statement. This
document is jointly submitted by the Chief Risk Officer ("CROT) and the Chief Financial Clticer ("CFCT)
to the Executive Management Board ("EMB") far approval.

The Risk Appelile Statement provides an aggregated view of risk and Includes capital adequacy and
balance sheel measures, liquidity risk, marke! and credd risk, operational risk, compliance risk and
model risk. It is subject 1o regular menitoring and breach escalation as appropriate by the owner of the
relevam risk appetite statement.

Mamura Group's Risk Appetite Statemeant is required to be reviewed at least annually by the EME but
it iz reviewed on an ad-hoc basis if necessary, and must specifically be reviewed following any
significant changes in Nomura Group's siralegy. Risk appelite underpins all additional aspecis of
Momura Group's risk management framework,

lobal Ri nageamen r
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Upon delegation from the EMB, the Group Integrated Risk Management Committes ("GIRMC")
deliberates on or delermines important matters conceming integrated risk management of Nomura
Group to assure the sound and effective managament of its businesses. The GIRMC establishes
Memura Group's risk appetite and a framework of integrated risk management consistent with Nomura
Group's risk appetite. The GIRMC supervises Momura Group's risk management by establishing and
cperaling its risk management framework. The GIRMC reports the status of key risk management
issues and any other matters deemed neceassary by the committea chairman to the Board of Direclor
and thi EMB.

In addition, the GIRMC, upan delegation from the EME, has established the Risk Management Palicy,
describing Momura Group's overall risk management framework including the fundamerntal risk
management principles followed by Nomura Group.

Upon delegation from the GIRMC, the Global Portfolio Committee ("GPC") deliberates on or determines
all mattars in relation to the managamant of a spacific portfalio, for the purpese of achisving a risk profile
consistent with the risk allocation and risk appetite of Nomura Group. The portiolio consists of
businesses and products that fall within at least one of the three following categories: even financing,
term financing and asset-based financing.

Tha CRO is responsibla for setting the overall sirategy and direction of the Risk Managamant Division.
The Risk Managemen! Division comprises various departments or units in charge of risk managemaent
established independently from Momura Group's business units. The Risk Management Division is
responsible for establishing and operating risk management processes, establishing and enforcing risk
management policies and regulations, verifying the effectiveness of risk managemen! methods,
gathering reporis from Nomura Group enfiies, reporting to Executive Officers/Senior Managing
Directors and the GIRMG and others, as wall as reporting 1o regulatory bodies and handling regulatory
applications conceming risk managemean! methods and other items as necessary.

Polizies and procedures are essential fools of governance used by the Risk Management Division, They
define principles, rules and standards, and the specific processes that must be adhered to in order to
effectively manage risk at Nomura Group. The Risk Managemen! Division has established a risk policy
framework 1o promole appropriate standards and consistency for rsk policies and procedures and to
articulate the principles and procedwes conducive to effective risk management. Risk management
operations are run in accordance with these policies and procedures.

Developmeant, consolidation, manitoring and reporting of risk management information [ “risk MI™ ) are
fundamental to the appropriate management of risk. The aim of all risk MI is to provide a basis for sound
decision making, action and escalation as required. The Risk Management Division, the Finance
Division and the Legal, Compliance and Control ("LCCT) division are respensible for producing regular
risk M, which raflects the position of Nomura Group redative to stated risk appetite. Risk MI includes
infarmation from across the risk classes delined in the risk management framework and reflect the use
ol the various risk tools used to idendily and assess those risks. These thres divisions are responsible
for implamenting appropriate controls over data integrity for risk MI.

The Company's qualitative and quantitative risk management
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from flucluations in values of financial assels and liabilifies
{including off balanca sheat items) dua to flucluations in market risk factors (interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, prices of securities and others). Effective management of this risk requires the ability
to analyse a complex and evolving portiolio in a constanily changing global market environment, identify
problamatic trends and ensure that appropriale action is taken in a timely manner. The Company seeks
to minimise the markel risks by entering ino derivative agreements to economically hedge the
axposuras in its loans and medium term notes. The matuity structure of the dervatives cormespands
wilh the maturity of the medium term notes being hedged.

Interest Rate and Equity Price Risk
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It iz the palicy of the Company to hedge inferast rate and equily price exposures via the use of interest
rate derivatives, cross currency derivatives or equity swaps.

The Company raises funding with short-term or long-term borrowings through the issuance of medium
term notes. The Company funds the desired curencies at beth fixed and floating rates of interest and
then uses bath interest rate and currency derivatives to generate the desired interest rate hadge profile.
This will invoive matching the coupon dates on both the assels and liabilities where relevant.

Applying the above hedging policy on interest rate exposure, the Company does not have a significant
interast rate exposure as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2018,

Currency Exposure

Currency exposures are comprised of the monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Company that
are ol denominated in the functional curency of the Company. All material nel cuimency exposUe
arising from activities of the Company is actively hadged using foreign exchange related derivatives
andlor currancy dervatives.

It is the policy of the Company not to frade currency expasure; therefore, all currency denvative
transactions are entered into with the intention of hedging only.

Applying the above hadging policy on currency exposura, the Company does not have a significant
cumency exposure as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019,

Creiit B

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from an obligor's default, insoheancy or administrative proceeding
which results in the obligor's failure 1o meet itz contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms.
This includes both on and off-balance sheet exposures. It is also the risk of loss arising through a credit
valuation adjusiment associated with deterioration in the creditworthiness of a counterparty,

The measurement, monitering and management of credit risk at Nomura Group are govemned by a set
of global pokicies and procedures. Cradit Risk Managament ("CRM”), a global function within the Risk
Management Division, is responsible for the implementation and maintenance of these policies and
proceduras. Credit risk is managed by CRM together with various global and regional risk commilless.
This ensures transparency of material credit risks and compliance with established credit limits, the
approval of material ecttensions of credit and the escalation of sk concentrations to appropriate senior
managemeant.

Credit quality of financial assets

The Company is & fully owned subsidiary of NHI, who is the guarantor of the notes issued by the
Company, together with anather related party. Therelore the Company considered the credit rating of
Momura Group as the same credit rating received by NH| from S&P Global Ratings which is BEB+ as
of 31 March 2020,

The Company's loans and derivative financial instruments are traded exclusivaly with Nomura Group.
The external credit rating of NHI iz considered to exhibit adequate protection parameters, as defined by
2&P Glokal Ratings. Consequenily, the Company deems that credit risk is minimised.

Cradit Risk Miigation Techniques

As mentioned previously, the Company enters inte ISDA master agreements or equivalent agreements
(called “Master Netting Agresmants”) to miligate its exposure 1o cradit loss. The impact af offsatting
financial agsets and financial liabilities which are subject to these agreements is not reflected in the
statement of financial position.

Impaired financial assels
The Company assessas on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with iis
financial assets. The Company recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date as
described in Note 2.3 a).
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All loans are transacted with Nomura Group. Please see Note 27 for the amount of impairment loss
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2020 or prior period.

Ligquidity Hisk

Liguidity Aisk Management

MNomura Group defines liquidity risk as the risk of loss arising from difficulty in securing the necessary
funding or from a significantly higher cost of funding than normal levels due to deterioration of Nomura
Group's creditworthiness or deterioration in marked conditions. This risk could arise from Momura-
spacific or market-wide avents such as inability to access the secured or unsacured debl markets, a
deterioration in Nomura Group credit ratings, a failure to manage unplanned changes in funding
requiremants, a failure to lquidate assets quickly and with minimal loss in value, or changes in
regulatory capital restrictions which may prevent the free flow of funds between different Nomura group
antities, Liquidity fsk managemen! policy iz based on lguidity nsk appetite formulated by the EMB.
Momura Group's liquidity risk management, under market-wide siress and in addition, under Nomura
Group spacific strass, seaks 1o ensurs snough confinuous liquidity 1o meet all funding requiremants and
unsacured debt cbligations across one year and 30-day periods respectively without raising funds
through unsecured funding or through the liquidation of assets.

Tha Nomura Group has in place a numbar of Liquidiy Risk Management frameworks that anable
Momura Group to achieve its primary bquidity objective. These frameworks include (1) Centralized
Control of Residual Cash and Maintenance of Liquidity Portfolio; (2) Ltilization of Unencumbered Assels
as Part of Liquidity Portfalio; (3} Appropriale Funding and Diversification of Funding Sources and
Maturities Commensurate with the Compesition of Assets; (4) Management of Credit Lines to Nomura
Group Entities; (5) Implemantation of Liquidity Stress Tests; and (6} Contingency Funding Plan.

Tha EMB has the authority to make decisions concerning Momura Group liguidity management. The
CFO of NHI has the cperational authority and respongsibility over Momura Group's liquidity management
based on decisions made by the EMB.

The Company is fully integrated into Nomura Group's Liquidity Risk Management frameworks given its
primary role as the funding vehicle of Nomura Group,

The maturity profile and sources of funding of the Company are actively monitered and managed by
Global Treasury of Nomura Group to avedld any concentration of funding by maturity and source. The
distribution of sources of funding and their maturity profile are actively managed in order fo ensure
acoass to funds and to avoid a concentration of funding at any one time or from any one Source.
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- ional i

Mamura Group defines oparational risk (the “Operaticnal Risk”) as the risk of loss or non-financial impact
arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from axternal evants.
Operational rigk includes in 13 dafinition compliance, legal, IT and cyber sacurity, fraud, third party and
cther non-financial risks. Operational risk does not include strategic risk and reputational risk, however,
some operational risks can lead to reputational issues and as such cperational and reputational risks
may be closaly linkad.

The Three Lines of Defence

Momwa Group adopts the industry standard “Three Lines of Defence” for the management of
operational risk, comprising the following elements:

1) 1st Line of Delence: The businass which owns and manages its risks

2) 2nd Line of Defence: The Operational Risk Managemant (“ORM™) function, which co-crdinates the
Operational Risk Management Framewark and its implementation

3) 3rd Line of Defence: Intarnal Audit, who provide indepandent assurance

Cperational Risk Managemen! Framework

An Cperafional Risk Management Framework has been established in crder to allow Momura Group to
idantify, assess. manage, manitor and repert on operational risk. The GIRMC, with delegated autharity
from the EME has formal oversight over the managament of cparational risk.

Thea ORM framework consists of 1) Infrastructure of the framework, 2) Products and Sarvices and 3)
Quiputs. The Company is fully integrated inte Momura Group's ORM framewerk.

Below are the measures taken to control the main operational risks which form Products and Services
in the ORM framework:

+ Risk and Control Seli-Assessment. This process is used to idenlify the inherent risks the business
faces, the key confrols associated with those risks and relevant actions to mitigate the residual risks,

« Seanario Analysis: This process is used 1o assess potentially high impact, low likelihcod operational
fisk evenils and whera the process identifies the neead 1o do g0, agree actions Lo improve conlrols,

» Event Reporting: This process is usad to dentily and reponl any event which resulled in or had tha

patential 1o resull 0 a loss or gain or olther impact associated with inadequate or failed intemal
processes, people and systems, or from axternal evenis.

« Key Risk Indicators: These are the meatrics used 1o monitor the business” exposure 1o operational risks
and trigger appropriale responses as thresholds are breached.

Applying the above measuraments, the Company does not have a significant operational risk exposure
as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2018,

24, Fair Value

Falr value of financlal assets and financial liabilities

Comparnison of the carmying amounts and fair values of finandal instruments

The carrying amounts of current financial assets and current financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost including Borrowing from affifates fairly approximate their fair values, since they are shor-lerm in

nature, Below lables include comparison of the camying amounts and fair values of non-current khans
and advances to affiliates and nan-current dabt issued and othar borrowing.
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As of March 2020

Carrying
amount Fair value
Level 2 Level 3
Milliong of  Millions of
Millions of JPY JPY JPY
Leans and advances to athliates 1 =
Dbt issued and othar barrawing 315818 285,347

Az of March 2019

Carrying
amount Fair value
Level 2° Level 3
“Milions of  Millicns of
Millions of JEY JPY JBY
Leans and advances to affliates 239,071 237,964 .
Debt issued and other barrowing 435,064 431,871 -

*Fair valup caloulation of non-cument debt Bsusd and ather barrowing 8 improved during the curment perled and pravious pariod
5 inpdatid for cormssensy.

For financial assets carried at amorised cost which have a maturity of more than one year from the
statement of financial position dafte, fair value is determined based on disceunted cash flows using the
prevailing rates from the active markets. Credit risk and seniority of the relevant loans are taken into
censidaration in determining the fair value of the loan.

For financial liabllites camied al amorised cost having a maturity of mere than one year from the
statement of financial position date, fair value is determined based on prica quotations at the statement
of financial position date. These quolations are based on lechniques for which all inputs that have a
gignificant effect on the fair value are observable either directly or indirectly, as well as techniques which
usa inputs not based on observable market data,

Fair Value Hleramhjr
The following tables presenis information about the Company's financial assets and financial liabilties

measured at fair value within the fair value hierarchy on a recurring basis, based on the transparency of
inputs into the valuation lechniques used by the Company to determine such fair values,

122/195



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

08E L¥e BElGZE | GEE ZLF | ObE OFE S92 LT L - FOLELE'L
LEL'5EL S5FGE0' | 061642 ) S8F 981 2E0°GFLL - £Z5'1EE")
=7 542 SER'E L2E LLZEL FE5CL
- za9'| ooa°L - £44'52 - £LL'58
=11 3G/ Ch LIZ'1g 128 L £09'/8 - ¥B2'CE
.82 £BG'L LSE0S 180 LE ZB0'S - ELLEY
G2k 125'6L G406 9256 LE2'¥+5 - 251201
EZ9° 19 9/9'GE1 GEZ'LBL GEE'PS QEZ"9z2 = S25°082
Al O SUSIIN  Adl JO SUSIIN  Adl JO SUOIIN AdM B SUOIN Al JO SUDH|IY Adl JO SUOIN Addl JO SUOI A PO SU0NIRY
£ Bae 2 [Bae I B unowny Bunlies £ [BAa Z e L [gas unowy Builies
GLOE Y2iew 0202 UMEN
jo sy
29985 TEE'9d Q56 vEl L B Hm,mm mhw_wm_.
ol [T SRl D&l 4] - 2L 1
" L2561 £l2's5l " LM5'g - 218
o'y 2h5'0Z LIS IE BOE'1 ZBE0F - L1GE'ZY
450'cF a8l LIB'ES TR o SvEEl - 2eL'2s
BES0L 145 L aL¥22 2858 9228l Fiz'iz
2a9'0s TEL'ag QEE'PEL Z2FBr FEEEL - ai8'g21
Adl IS SURNIN  Adl Jo SUCHII Al e SUOHIRY Adl §2 sUCIy Adl 2 SUCIW Adl 19 SUSINIIN  Ad™ FO SUSHIY Adl 19 SUS|IIN
£ A Z [BAEn WG] Unelly Buiiues £ B Z [BAE WEE g LAT)
6102 UMEN 0202 LMEN
jo sy

SINIWILYLS TYIONYNId 3HL OL S3LON
"A’N 3ONVNI4 3d0HN3 VHNWON

550 40 1yeud yBnomy) enpes Jej
1e peleubisep SBIIgE) EISUEUIY
SHANEALISH JIP&IT)
SBANEALSE Al POWLIOD
saaneausp Ainbg
EBAEALIBR BJE1 j58IEU|
SBAITEALIBD DBIE |8
abueyoxe whieiog
SBOIIGE] [BIDUBUY SARBALST
anjes 1jej e
PRINSESI SONIIITE|| [ESURlS

SOAIEALSD D00
SEANBAUSE AJIPoWLLDn
sanfieAusp Ainb3
SOAIEALSE SR JSaIU|
SEOAEALBED DEJE6
abueyoxe whiwio

EOSEE [EIOURLLY SALEALS

onjes Je)

1B PRUNSESLW §18SSE [E|DUBU]Y

123/195



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value

hierarchy

The following tables show a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of financial instrumants
categoriged within Level 3 between the beginning balances and the ending balances as of the reporting

pariod,

Beginning balance

Tolal gasns/Iosses) in the income
statemant=

Menw [$suas

Satllernents

Transbers in

Transters out

Ending balance

Total unrealised gains/(losses)
tor the paried included in the
incoma stalament for instrumeants
held at the end of the reporting
period

Beginning balance'"

Total gains/(losses) in the income
statpment'=

Menw |s5U8s

Settharnents

Transters in

Transters out

Ending balance

Tatal unrealised gains/(los565)
tor the pariod includad in the
income statament lor instruments
hald at the end of the reporting
period

March 2020
Financial liabilities
dasignated at fair
Derivative Drerivative value through
financial assels  Financial Rabilities ofil or loss
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY Milions of JPY
58662 61,622 185737
(137" (403) 4873
- . 199977
7,041 [4.545) (1358.432)
1,765 4,588 31,330
{4,328) {7.318) (58,000}
40,423 54,355 186,465
5,685 (10.068) {5202}
March 2018
Financial liabilities
desagnated al fair
Darivative Drerivative valua through
financial assets  financial labilities profit or logs
Millions af JBY Milliong af JBY Milioms ol JPY
52,432 54,942 55,624
6,096 8,748 5414
- - 140,182
1,011 (&,013) (19,430}
2,542 8,643 58,144
(2418 {5.687) 154187}
56,662 61,623 185,737
16,926 (16, 781) 5412

1} Baginning balances for 31 Manch 2019 moevemsent takdes ane adjusted beginning balances due to initial application of IFRS
8

2 Forassets, pesitive balances. represant galns. negative balances neprogent losses. For liabdities, positive balances represent
o, aliva balances

L

Tetal gains and kosses an financial derivatives included in the above table are included under Net frading
incomaioss) in the income statement. Total gains and losses on financial liabilties designated at fair
value through profit or loss included in the above table are included under Net gainfloss) on financial
labiities designated at fair value through profit oF lass in the ncome statemant,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
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During fhe years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, there were no financial assets and financial
liakilitios recognised at fair value under Level 1. Thus, no transtars occurmed between Lavel 1 and Lavael 2.

The Company assumes thal all transfers of financial instruments from one level 1o ancther level within
the fair value hierarchy occur at the beginning of each quarter within the relevant period in which the
transfer takes place. Amounis reported above therefore represent the fair value of the financial
instruments at the beginning of each quarter within the relevant period when the transfer was made.

Valuation techniques by major class of financlal instrument
Derivatives:

Tha Company has only OTC derivatives, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, which are valued
using internal models using marked transactions and octher marke! evidence whenever possible,
including market-based inpuls 1o models, medel calibration to marke! clearing transactions, broker or
dealer quotations, or allernative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price fransparency. Valuation
techniques include simple discounted axpectad cash flow techniques, Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo
simulations, OTC derivatives, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, are classified within Lewel 2
of the fair value hierarchy when all of the significant inputs can be corroborated to market avidence.

Derivatives that are valued using models with significant uncbservable inputs suech as cormelation, long-
dated valatility, or othar unobsarvable inputs are classified within Level 3. Examples of derivatives
classified as Level 3 by the Company include exofic interest rate derivatives, exotic foreign exchange
derivatives, exolic equity derivatives, exatic derivatives including a combination of interest rate, foreign
exchange and equily risks and cerfain cther transactions including long-dated or exclic credit
darivativas.

Valuation technigues may rely on parametars which are not cbservable in the market due lo an absence
of equivalent, current, market ransactions or observable market data. These valuation technigues are
based on assumptions. As a result, the fair value calkulated using these valuation technigues will
change if the underlying assumptions changs.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, a tofal of JPY 1,765 million of financial assets (2019; JPY 2,542
million} and a total of JPY 4,998 million of inancial liabilities (2019: JPY 8,843 milkon) were transierned
info Level 3, On the financial assets side the transterred amount comprised primarily JPY 1,630 million
of equity derivatives (2019: comprised primarily JPY 2,577 million of equity dernivatives) which werne
transferred into Level 3 because certain volafillies and correlations became unobservable or the
significance of unobservable parameters increased, On the financial liabilities side the translermed
amounts comprised primarily JPY 4,561 million of aquity derivatives (2019: comprised primarily JPY
7,510 million of equily derivatives) which ware fransferred inlo Level 3 because certain volatilities and
correlations bacame unobservable or the significance of unobservable parameters increased.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, a tofal of JPY 4,328 million of financial assets (2019: JPY 3,419
million} and a total of JPY 7,318 million of financial liabilities (2012; JPY 5,697 milkon) were transiermed
out of Level 3. On the financial assets side the translerred amount comprised primarily JPY 4,010 millien
of equity derivatives (2019: compriged primarily JPY 2,043 million of eguity derivatives) which ware
translermed out of Level 3 becawse cerain volatiities and comelations became observable or the
significance of unobservable parameters decreased, On the financial liabilities side the transfered
amounls comprised prmanly JPY 8,776 millien of equily derivatives (2019: comprised primarily of JPY
3,742 million of equity derivatives) which wera transterred out of Level 3 because certain volatilfies and
corralations bacame obeservable or the significance of unobservable parameaters decreased,

The Company issues medium-term notes which contains embedded featwres that alter the refum o the
invastor from simply recaiving a fixed or floating rate of interast to a raturn that depends upon some othar
variables, such as an equily or equity indes, commaedity price, foreign exchange rate, credit rating of a third
party of a mare complax interest rate (iLe., an embadded darivative).
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The fair value of such medium term notes is determined using a quoted marke! price in an active markel
for the identical liability if available, and where not available, using a mixdure of valuation techniques that
usa the quoted price of the identical liabilty when traded as an asset, quoted prices for similar kabdities,
similar liabilities whan fraded as an asset, or an inlernal modal which combines discounted cash flow
("DCF") valuation techniques and aption pricing models, depending on the nature of the embedded features
within the medium term note. The significant valuation inputs used to estimate the fair value of the debt
instrument component include yield curves, prepayment rates. defaull of probabiliies and less severiies.

Valuation processes

Tha Company is fully integrated inte Momura Group's governance framewcrk which mandates
datarmination or validation of a fair value measurement by control and support functiens independent
of the businesses assuming the risk of the financial instrument in order to ensure the appropriateness
of any lair value measurement of a financial instrument used within these inancial staterments ineluding
those classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

The functions within Nomura Group for either defining, implemanting or maintaining valuation palicies
and procedures are as follows:

«  The Product Control Valuations Group ("PCVGET) within Nomura’s Finance Deparment has the
prifmary responsibility 1o detarmine and implement valuation pelicies and precedures in connection
with determination of fair value measurements. In particular, this group will ensure that valuation
polickes are documentad for each type of linancial instrument. Whils it is the responsibility of market
makers and investment professionals in Nomura Group's trading businesses to price our financial
instrumants, the PCYG are respansible for indepandently verifying or validating these prices. In
the event of a differenca in opinion or where the estimate of tair value requires judgement, the
valuation used within these financial statements is made by senior managers independent of the
trading businassas. This group reports 1o the Global Head of Product Contrel and ultimately to the
CFO of Nomura Group;

+  The Accounting Palicy Group within Nomura's Finance Department defines the Group's accounting
polickes and proceduras, including those associated with determination of fair value. This group
reports to the Global Head of Accounting Policy and ullimately fo the CFO of Nomura Growp; and

«  The Global Modal Validation Group (*MVG") within Nomura's Risk Management Department
validates the appropriateness and consistency of pricing models used 1o determine fair value
measurements indepandently of those who design and build the medels. The group repors 1o
the CRO.

Independent price verilicalion processes

Tha kay objective of the independant price verifization processas within Momura Group is to verify the
appropriateness of fair value measurements applied to all financial instruments within Nomura Group.
In applying thesa confrol processes, obsarvable inputs are used whenever possible and when
uncbservable inputs are necessary, the processes seek to ensure the valuation technique and inpuls
are appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied.

Tha independant prica verlication processes aim 1o verily the fair value of all pesitions to extermnal lavels
on a regular basis. The process involves obtaining data swch as trades, marks and prices from intermal
and external sowrces and examining the impact af marking the internal positions at the external prices.
Margin disputes within the collateral process are also investigated to determine if thera is any impact
on valuations.

Where third-party pricing infermation sourced from brokers, dealers and consensus pricing senvicas s
used as par of the price verification process, consideration is given as to whether that information
reflects actual recent market transactions or prices at which transactions involving identical or similar
financial instrumenis are currently executable. If such transactions or prices are noi available, the
financial instrument will generally be classified in Level 3.
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Where there is a lack of obsarvable market information arcund the inpuls used in a fair value
measurament, then the PCVG and the MVG will assess the reasonableness of inpuls used, considering
available information including comparable products, surfaces, curves and past trades. Additional
valuation adjustments may be taken for the uncertainty in the inputs usaed, such as correlation and
where appropriate trading desks may be asked to execute trades to evidence market levels,

CQuantitative information regarding significant unobservable inputs and assumptions

Tha following table presents information about the significant unobservable inputs and assumgtions
used for financial instruments classified as Level 3. These financial instruments also typically include
cbsarvable valuation inputs (i.e. Level 2 valuation inputs) which are not included in the table.

Tha following lable shows valuation techniques and inputs usad in the lair value measuremeants of Level 3
financial assets and financial liabilities:

Fair value as of
March 2020
Millions of JPY
Significant Range of
Valuation uncbaservable valuation
Assols Liabilities _ technigue(s) inputs inputs!'
Foreign exchange 8,988 9,526 DCFiCption  FX Volatilities]] 12.48-13.05%
related darivatives Model
Interast rate darivatives 34,876 3708 DCF/ Option Inlarast rales -0.13-1.12%
Maodel FX anamlaﬂ%j B.81-13.80%
IR Volatiities{bp) 28.95-103.23
Comelations -0,25-0.98
{-1.000 1.0)
Equity derivatives 1,268 T2 DCF/Option Dividend yield 0.00-9.28%
Model  EQ Voladliies[] 17.22-76.40%
Cormpations 071091
{-1.0 bo 1.0}
Cridil dervatives 190 2T DCF Cradit Spraads 0.10-1.99%.
Recovery Rates 35 -35%
Financial liabilitias - 166,485 DCFOption Interest ratas 0.02-0. 765
designated at fair valua Model  FX Volailities]3] B.81-13.07%
through profit or loss IR Volatiitiesbp) 29.95.57.50
Comelations -0.25-0.98
{-1.080 1.0}
Total 48,423 240,840
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Falr value as of
March 2019
Millions of JPY
Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable valuation
Assals Liabilitios techniquels) inputs inpasts!’
Foreign exchanga 10,638 11,215 DCFiOption  FX Volatliies[3] 14.59 -18.13%
related derivatives Model
Interast rate darivativas 43,056 42 874 DCF/ Option Intarast ralas 0.04-2 319
Model FX anamlaﬂ‘ﬁ] 10.6-15.17%
IR Volatities{bp] 32.45-83.83
ions -0.25-0.98
{~1.000 1.0)
Equity derivatives 4,663 T AR5 DCFOption Dividend yield 0.00 -6.61%
Moded  EQ Volatlites[3s) 6.57-54.48%
Comalations 0.7 -0.91
{-1.0 b0 1.0}
Criadil dervatives 104 79 DCF Cradit Spraads 0.24-1,35%
Recovery Rates 35 -35%
Financial liabilitias 185,737 DCF/Option Interast rates 0.04-2.31%
designated at fair value Model  FX Voladliies]3] 11.5-15.2005
through profit or loss IR Volatitias[bp] 32.45.80.90
Comelations -0.25-0.98
{-1.0 80 1.0}
Total 58,662 247,360

{1} Range informalion is provided in porcontages, coofficients and rogresents the highest and lowest lovel significant
unotservable valuation input used to vadue thal type of Snandal instrument, A wide dispersion in the mnge doss not
necessanly reflect increased uncerainty or subjectivity in the valuation input and is typically just a consequence of the
ditlerant characteristics of the financial instraments themsebes,

Sensitivity of fair value to changes in uncbservable inputs

Given that the valuation of Level 2 financial instruments fluctuate in response to a variaty of factors,
including, but not limited 1o general market sentiment, credit, interest rate, foreign exchange and
correlation risk, current values may continue to decrease if conditions deteriorate further. Conversely,
should condflions improve; an increase in the value of the Level 3 portfolio would be expecied, However,
managamani doas nat anticipate a significant impact in tha net position of Level 2 financial instruments.

As the Company enters into derivative transactions to hedge its exposures in medium term notas, the
increase or decrease in the value of the Level 3 porifolio will not significantly impact its profits and
lesses. Hedging denvative instruments offset the positions arising from the dervatives which are
embedded in the deb! instruments and limit the sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable
inputs related to these financial instruments,

Fer each class of financial instrument described in the above tables, changes in each of the significant
unchsenable inpuls and assumptions used by the Company will impact the fair value measurament of
the financial instrument. The sensitivily of these Level 3 fair valve measurementis to changes in
uncbsenable inpuls and interrelationships between those inputs are described below:

Derivatives - Where the Company is long the underlying risk of a derivative, significant increases
(decreases) in the underying of the derivative, such as interest rates or credit spreads in izolation or
significant decreases (increases) in dividend yields would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair
value measurement. Where the Company is short the underlying risk of a derivative, the impact of these
changes would have a converse effect an the fair value measuremants reported by the Company.

128/195



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Where the Company is long oplionality, recovery rates or correlation, significant increases (decreases)
in volatilities, recovery rates or cormelation will genarally resull in a significantly higher (lower) fair value
measuramant. Whera the Company is short optionality, recovery rates or correlation, the impact of
these changes would have a converse effect on the fair value measuremems.

Financial labilibies desigrated at fair value through profit or loss — When financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or boss contain embedded features, embedded leatures alter the return 1o the
imvastor from simply receiving a fixed or floating rate of interest to a return that depends upon some
cther variables, such as an equity or equity index, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, credit rating
of a third party or a more complex interast rate.

Given that the financial derivatives are held for risk management purposes to offset movemeant from such
financial liabilities designated at lair value through profil or loss, sensitivity of the fair value of the financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss to changes in unobservable inputs are expected to
b in the opposite direction of thase of the darivatives.

Thera iz no predictable interrelationship between significant unobsarvable inputs for Level 3 financial
instruments,

Given tha Company is exposad 1o limited market risk, the sensitivity of the profit or loss and aquity to
unchservable inputs is megligible. Regarding the statemem of financial position, when reasonably
possible altermative unobservable inputs are used, the impact on fair value of Lavel 3 instruments is not
significant compared to the total assels of the entity.

Day 1 gains and losses

Gaing and losses genarated from the use of valuation techriques with significant unobgervable paramaters
are defemed over the lile of the contract until parameters become observable or whan the instrument is
derecognised, Changes in fair value after inception are recognised in the profit or loss account, The tatal
fair value atiributable io these financial instrumends that is yet to be recognised in the praf or loss accound
as of the stalement of financial position date is JPY 512 million gain (2019; JPY 840 million gain). The
fallowing table shows a recanciliation of movemans in the day 1 gains and losses betwean the baginning
balances and the ending balances.

As of
March 2020 March 2019
Millions of JPY Milicns. of JPY
Beginning balance gain 640 625
New transactions - -
Amounts recognised in pralil er logs during the year {128) 15
Ending balance gain 512 G40
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25. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The fallowing table provides a summary of inancial assets and financial liabilities subject to the Master
Metiing Agreemenis and similar agreements.

As of March 2020

Millicns of JPY
Related amounts not set off in
the statarment of linancial
position
Gross
amounts  Amounts

Gross amounts of  Offeet I prasented

recognised balance  balance Financial Cash Net

assotsliabilitias’ sheel sheal instrumentsi® collateral™! Amaount
Darivative
financial assets BT, 409 &7.409 (656,324) 1,085
Loans and
advances o
affiliales 261,016 261,016 - 261,016
Tolal financial
assals 328,925 - 328,425 (66,324) - 262101
Derivativa
finmncial 269,785 268,785 (62, 364) (207,005) 416
liakilities
Other liabilites 3960 3960 {3,960} - -
Total financial
llabilities 273,745 - 273,745 (66, 324) (207,005) 416
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As of March 2019
Millions of JPY

Related amounts nol et
off In the statement of

financlal position
Gross
AnoLnLE Arricurts
Gross amounts of nﬁ:f: in P':::":;'d
m'f:ﬂ:md balanee balanee Finaneial Cash Met

assats/liabilifagm  3heet sheet instruments'™  collateral®  Amount
Danivativa
financial assets B4,824 - 64,824 (63,841) (983)
Leans and
advances o 277,237 - 277,237 B . 277237
affiliatas.
Other agsats 30,220 - 30,220 (27,536) - 2,684
Teodal financial T2 - a7z (81,377} (983} 279,921
assals
Deivativa
financial 185,019 . 185,019 (81,377)
liakilitias (93,842
Todtal financial
liabilities 185,019 - 185,019 (91,377) (93,642)

1}  The bifurcsted emboddod domratives aro soduded a5 they are nal in scopse ol master nefling and similar agroomaents.

#  Those represenl amounts which are not pemitted 1o be offset on the face of the balance sheot b which provide the
Campany with the right of ofiset in the event of countarparty default, insobency or bankupicy,

3} The cash collateral received against the posithee mark to masket values of desivatives and the cash collaberal pledged
towarcs the megathve mark to markel values of desivathoes are reported wndar Cther abiites andd Citfrer assefs reapectively.

The Company entered inte ISDA Master Agreements with all derivative counterparties which gran the
Company the right to set off in the event of counterparty default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The
Company also enterad into On Balance Sheat and Off Balance Sheat Master Netting Agreaments with
one of the counterparties which granl the Company the right to set off in the event of counterparly
dafault, insolvency or bankruptey, Thesae arrangements reduce credit sk exposura relative 1o what the
credil exposure would be if the same counterparty were liable for their gross exposures on the same
undarlying contracts.

Usually, nefting arangements are constituted by a master netling agreement which specifies the
general terms of the agreemeant between the countarparties, including information on the basis of the
netting calculation, types of collateral, the definition of default and other termination evenis, the
calculation of damages (on defaull) and documenfation required. The Master Metting Agreement
contains the terms and conditions by which all (or as many as possible) relevant transactions between
the counterparties are governed. Multiple individual transactions are subsumed under this general
master netting agreement, forming a single legal contract under which the counterparties conduct their
rerlevant mulual business. In addition to the mitigation of credit risk, placing individual transactions under
a single master nefling agreement that provides for netting of transactions in scope also helps to
mitigale seftlement risks associated with transacting in muliple jurisdictions or across multiple
contracts,
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26. Capital management policy

The objective of the Company's capial management policy is to ensure that the Company has an
appropriate level of capial, being issued capial and issued medium term notes and borrowing from
affiliates.

The Company reviews the appropriate level of capital - the determination of the level of appropriate
capital will take into eonskderation the financing needs and liquidity position of Nemura Group.

Ma changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year.

As of
March 2020 March 2019
Millizns of JBY Milkong of JPY
Isswad and paid-up capital 6117 6,383
Share pramium 1,321 1,321
Currency translation reserve 2.285 209
Tatal issued capital 9,723 9,723
Debt issued and other barrowing 380,150 502,820
« Mon-curment 315818 433,064
- Currant 64,332 63,756
Financial iabilities designated at fair value through
prafit or loss 1,331,523 1,275,150
- Mon-currant 917,855 1,057,153
- Current 413,688 218,037
Borrowing from affiliates 81,312 575,681
- Nen-curment . .
- Gurrant 781,312 575 B51
Tatal issued capital, medium term notes and
bermowing frem atfifates 2,502,708 2363414

27. Related parties

Same as disclesed in elsewhora of these financial statements, the Company had the following matarial
transactions with relaled parties during the pariod.

a. Transactions with the parent

i. The Company entered into loan agreements with NHI and earned interest income of JPY
11,029 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019; JFY 8688 million) (Feler 1o Note 3),
As of 31 March 2020, tofal autstanding loan to MHI amounted 1o JPY 1,880,106 million (2015
JPY 1,508,600 million). The cutstanding balance is unsecured. The Company has JPY 235,000
million unsettled loan commilments to NHI as of 31 March 2020 (2019 JPY 205,200 mallion).
JPY &5 million impairment loss has been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2020 onthe
Iaans and unsatiled kan commitments 1o NHI (2012 JPY 21 million).

i. The Company entered into a dealer agreemen wilh NHI, as one of the guarantors of the
Company notes, wheraby the Company has agreed 1o pay a fee (Reler to Nole 4) based on
ihe average outstanding amount of the neles duning the relevant calculation period. JPY 544
million guarantes fees were reported under Fee and commission expense for the year ended
31 March 2020 (2019 JPY 797 milion). As of 31 March 2020, the guarantes fee payable to
MHI is JPY 944 million (2019: JPY 797 millien).

In accordance with the Unilateral APA in the Netherlands (Refer 1o Note 11), the Company
agreed fo pay the adjustment amount resuling from the APA to NHI. The adjustment amount
of JPY 3745 millien {2019: JPY 4 236 million) was reported under General and
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administrative expenses. As of 31 March 2020, JPY 22 milion is accrued wunder Other
labkilities (2019; JPY 4,286 million) in relation to the APA,

iv. The Company incurred service fee of JPY 423 million for NHI information technalogy
infrastructure suppon and other services for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: JPY 444
million). This axpeansa is reponed under General and adminisirative expensas in the income
statemnent. As of 31 March 2020, the service fee payable to MHI is JPY 208 million (2019:
JPY 208 millien).

k. Transactions with the Managing Directors

As of 31 March 2020, the Company had twao Managing Directars who were seconded from Nomura
Group. Mo remuneration o the managing directors was chargeable to the Company for the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019,

¢. Transzactions with other related parlies

i. The Company antered inlo loan agreaments with other related parties and earmed interast
income of JPY 17,305 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 (31 March 2018; JPY 20,151
million) (Fefer ta Mot 3). As of 31 March 2020, total outstanding loan 1o other related parties
amounted to JPY 582,751 milion {2018: JPY 783,454 millicn). All outstanding balances are
unsecurad, The Company has no unsettled loan commitments o other related paries as of 31
March 2020 (201 9 JPY 203,562 millicn). JPY 158 million impairment gain has been recognised
for the year ended 31 March 2020 on the loans and unsaftled commaments to ather related
partias (2019: JPY 76 million loss)

i. The Company entered info borrowing agreements with ofher related parties and incumred
interesi expense (Refer io Mote 3). All borrowings from affiliates are from other related parties.

iii. The Company entered inlo derivative transactions with ether related parties under ISODA Master
Agreamants, As of 31 March 2020, denvative financial assets and derivative financial iabilties
with cther related parties amounted to JPY B7, 409 milien and JEY 268,785 milion, respectively
(31 March 2019: denvative financial assets - JPY 64,824 milion and dervative financial
liabilities - JPY 185,019 milion). Undar ISDA Credit Suppart Annex signed with related parties,
the Company posts and receives cash collaleral related to derivalive iransactions (Reder 1o nole
16and 21},

iv. As of 31 March 2020, total outstanding balance of debt issued by the Company held within
Marnura Group for liguidity or market making puposes amounted to JPY 15,445 milion (2019:
JPY 16,525 millkan) of which JPY 4,363 million classified under Debf issued and ofher borrowing
(2019 JPY 3,391 milien) and JPY 11,082 milion under Financial fabiities designaled al fair
value through profit or loss (2019; JPY 13,134 million),

v. The Company enterad into a dealer agreement with one of the related parties i Nomura Group,
as guaraniors of the Company notes, whereby it has agreed 1o pay a fee (Refer to MNate 4)
basad on the average cutstanding amount of the notes during the relevant cakulation period.
JPY & million guarantes fees waene charged 1o Fee and commigsion expense for the year ended
31 Barch 2020 (2019: JPY 7 million). As of 31 March 2020, the guarantee fes payable to the
ather related party is JPY 8 million (2019 JPY 7 million).

vi. For the year ended 31 March 2020, ihe Company incumed service lees amounting to JPY 106
million to cerlain related paries for provision of operational suppor which are reported under
General and administrative expenses in the income statement (2019 JPY %1 million),

vii. The Company entered into a dealer agreement with cther related party who underwrites notes
issued by the Company including the notes classified under Financial Nabiities designated at
fair value through profit or loss, The Company economically hedges structured nature of the
netes by entering derivalive transactions with ancther other related parly. Gain or loss arising
from the notes was recognised under Net gainflioss) on financial abilities designated at fair
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vilue through proft or fess while gain or loss arising from derivative transactions was
recognised under Net frading income{ioss)].

vii. The Company places/recaives Cash collateral toffrom derivative counlarparties related to
derivative transactions and incurmed interest {Refer to Note 16 and Nate 21},

28. Events after the reporting period
Hiroyuki Muromachi resigned as President and Managing Diector of the Company effectie 10 April 2020,

The sharehcider appointed Kemare Kuboia as the new President and Managing Director of ihe Company
eftective 10 April 2020.

Momura Groug is continuing 1o monitor and update the precautionary measures in response to the ongoing
COVID-19 cutbreak., Substantial pandamic business continuily plans continue to evolve in line with
business raquirements.

29. Appropriation of result - Management proposal

The management proposes to add the total gain for the year ended 31 March 2020 of JPY 7,411 millicn to
the retained sarmings. This propesal has been reflectad in the accoums.

17 July 2020

Managing Directors

Kentaro Kubata Kenichiro Asano

OTHER INFORMATION

Auditer's report

The report of the auditors, Emst & Young Accountants LLP, is presented on page 6,
Appropriation of result - Provision in the Company’s articles of association

In accordance with Article 20 of the Company's articles of association, the net resull shall be free at the
dizposal of the General Mesting.
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2020 31
2019
2014 18 3,267 3,267
NEXT FUNDS JPX
400 (
1591)
2019 2014 22 33 2,000 33 2,000
(
)
2019 2014 16 74 6,000 74 6,000
(
)
2019 12 2014 12 15 25 3,000 25 3,000
(
)
2020 2018 23 85 2,600 85 2,600
( )(
)
2020 2018 23 80 8,200 80 8,200
)
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HSILI(T) = HSILI(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (HSI(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K-1) x (HSI
(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) x Stamp Duty } ]

HSILI(T): ©)
HSILI(T-1): m
K: 2
D(T,T-1): T T-1
HIBOR: 11 HIBOR
HSI(T):
HSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:
50

HSISI(T) = HSISI(T-1)x [1 + {-Kx (TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1) + (K+1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K+1) x
(TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1)  x Stamp Duty } ]

HSISI(T): m
HSISI(T-1): m
K:1
D(T,T-1): T T-1
HIBOR: 11 HIBOR
TRHSI(T):
TRHSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:
50

200
L(T) = L(T-D)x [1 + {Kx (F(T)/F(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } ]

L(T): m 200

L(T-1) : m 200
K: 2

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

F(T): 200

F(T-1): 200

200
I(T) = I(T-1)x [1 + {-Kx (F(T)/F(T-1) - 1) + (Kx 0.85) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } ]

1(M): m 200

1(T-1) : m 200
K: 1

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

F(T): 200

F(T-1): 200
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HR™ = m
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m=1
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m d=1,2,3, D
md m d m0 m-1
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n
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
25,020.79 16,748.69 25,374.67 30,841.69 24,080.11
12,699.12 9,874.67 14,011.07 16,327.56 16,665.33
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
18,728.73 20,047.18 20,580.33 21,620.88 19,904.16 18,194.71
17,097.69 17,872.86 17,481.39 17,662.67 17,350.27 11,776.79
Bloomberg
)
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
8,326.57 9,038.74 7,015.23 5,670.84 5,524.01
6,289.54 6,516.88 4,929.88 4,447.28 4,563.88
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
5,204.12 5,063.93 5,112.24 5,065.39 5,080.28 6,056.80
4,960.22 4,792.98 4,709.20 4,595.31 4,765.06 4,956.83
Bloomberg
)
200
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
262.63 230.56 376.03 371.77 264.33
171.49 172.24 226.50 213.03 194.78
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
235.04 251.01 264.33 283.18 276.34 237.00
218.19 232.67 226.78 244.18 215.25 116.78
Bloomberg
)
200
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
1,061.55 1,035.71 887.36 890.83 911.02
853.37 889.94 689.12 686.00 765.93
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
858.38 826.81 837.35 795.12 842.52 1,121.14
824 .57 796.75 765.93 740.20 746.38 801.95
Bloomberg
)
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
50,080.55 35,750.10 11,287.72 2,490.85 1,663.03
17,065.71 10,936.15 1,926.18 1,084.99 400.36
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
642.26 495.61 468.31 429.91 660.04 1,982.89
495.19 447.89 400.36 370.40 375.66 585.86
Bloomberg
)
JPX
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
18,661.12 16,245.14 16,844.20 17,349.46 21,413.13
12,892.62 12,689.91 14,437.73 13,224.51 15,228.30
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
20,866.20 20,911.99 21,413.13 23,252.99 25,931.72 24,719.56
19,506.79 19,618.85 19,642.35 22,357.34 22,745.28 19,075.25
Bloomberg
)
JPX
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
6,609.49 6,650.32 6,114.68 6,317.04 5,865.28
5,616.84 5,851.50 5,639.84 5,546.42 4,888.43
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
5,132.22 5,110.86 5,105.66 4,773.32 4,730.03 5,112.78
4,958.77 4,952.54 4,888.43 4,682.41 4,424.26 4,455.54
Bloomberg
)
JPX
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
7,657.50 1,831.24 2,062.91 3,834.26 2,708.95
1,639.20 769.87 1,031.06 1,208.97 1,432.64
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
1,733.96 1,900.89 2,197.16 2,336.99 1,900.15 1,453.50
1,440.82 1,581.62 1,769.76 1,687.17 1,338.49 387.94
Bloomberg
)
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JPX
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
11,676.76 15,713.56 8,021.12 6,315.45 5,578.41
6,349.01 6,269.31 5,450.03 3,763.64 4,009.02
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
5,050.12 4,790.39 4,478.35 4,519.24 4,981.66 6,823.11
4,579.65 4,326.61 4,009.02 3,880.90 4,222.74 4,775.19
Bloomberg
)
10
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
1,310.90 1,486.11 2,209.55 2,516.59 2,557.92
956.38 938.36 1,442 .29 1,587.43 1,707.93
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
2,323.90 2,487.16 2,557.92 2,679.36 2,704.76 2,242.54
2,148.18 2,349.98 2,369.63 2,475.51 1,986.07 967.14
Bloomberg
)
11
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
544 .14 530.48 411.02 355.69 341.05
470.73 405.49 322.40 293.31 265.96
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
292.89 279.28 276.84 269.52 297.36 386.32
280.91 270.52 265.96 259.46 257.34 277.58
Bloomberg
)
12
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
1,028.38 1,226.42 1,234.02 1,355.55 967.92
708.12 667.49 955.09 757.02 824.20
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
877.30 915.14 915.32 893.27 857.03 743.13
836.76 851.56 866.20 811.77 700.63 557.86
Bloomberg
)
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13 STOXX 50
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
5,203.22 4,602.12 5,842.81 6,192.48 5,876.87
3,880.10 3,655.67 4,558.10 5,254.96 5,080.21
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
5,524.25 5,713.53 5,655.71 5,749.65 5,413.89 4,867.90
5,256.05 5,494.17 5,391.41 5,265.56 4,798.62 3,517.58
Bloomberg
)
14 S&P500 )
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
370.75 415.05 487.99 524 .51 597.95
334.63 335.97 403.93 443.47 458.25
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
572.44 588.34 597.95 603.34 601.90 562.99
541.81 574.04 577.88 581.11 529.70 388.46
Bloomberg
)
15 S&P
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
489.01 503.87 593.80 604.85 721.44
406.00 414.17 465.01 553.28 573.28
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
720.09 719.96 721.44 747.20 762.78 752.43
706.10 693.04 699.71 717.26 701.87 476.26
Bloomberg
)
16 Nifty50 ( )
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
4,264.20 3,660.20 4,617.15 5,467.50 5,440.90
2,824.25 2,319.25 2,977.00 3,930.25 4,172.95
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
5,083.25 5,297.70 5,385.00 5,441.30 5,268.95 4,497.95
4,479.00 5,041.95 5,034.90 5,080.05 4,421.15 1,933.80
Bloomberg
)
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17 Nifty50 ( )
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
474.70 521.60 456.05 396.10 381.20
391.25 411.85 367.90 337.25 334.05
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
366.15 344.80 345.40 344.05 367.45 519.00
343.20 336.55 334.05 332.35 337.40 364.00
Bloomberg
)
18 70
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
39,564.81 39,227.86 45,782.80 47,746.38 44,874.06
30,917.41 28,026.49 36,706.29 37,031.05 36,732.76
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
43,219.50 44,428.04 44,874.06 44,346.51 43,973.57 38,404.44
40,037.81 43,028.16 43,694.28 42,427.17 38,490.30 30,206.25
Bloomberg
)
19 S&P/JPX
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
218.670 231.460 278.681 288.258 281.344
165.015 174.126 219.578 225.787 225.218
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
263.186 272.930 281.344 278.637 275.190 242 .818
245_494 262.554 271.346 266.962 241.253 194.636
Bloomberg
)
20 REIT
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
3,797.710 3,950.453 3,847.177 4,172.403 5,471.26
2,930.985 3,181.302 3,423.293 3,591.120 4,033.31
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
5,451.388 5,471.260 5,375.896 5,448.063 5,536.668 5,210.775
5,225.336 5,112.334 5,139.319 5,188.732 4,988.719 2,884.009
Bloomberg
)
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21 Al 70
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
30,417.57 30,186.35 36,675.01 38,373.24 34,441.74
25,011.42 22,188.60 28,581.10 28,161.23 29,208.32
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
33,456.35 34,023.05 34,441.74 34,553.13 34,193.25 29,860.47
31,691.19 33,259.02 33,571.77 32,954.15 29,688.63 23,397.85
Bloomberg
)
22 30
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
21,888.47 18,931.34 24,082.17 25,957.90 19,494.79
16,808.16 12,520.14 17,666.71 16,457.87 15,835.26
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
19,019.45 19,217.31 19,494.79 19,820.13 19,378.77 17,134.94
17,488.11 18,356.53 18,676.83 18,508.89 16,908.30 12,760.43
Bloomberg
)
23 50
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
22,962.94 22,303.93 26,078.87 27,725.06 27,826.69
16,641.50 18,832.58 21,746.35 22,879.73 23,361.87
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
26,597.33 27,454.13 27,826.69 27,635.95 27,823.84 24,957.70
25,103.45 26,594.49 27,378.52 27,004.80 24,002.74 20,871.32
Bloomberg
)
24
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
1,231.25 1,326.35 1,748.22 1,820.28 1,684.41
991.18 941.42 1,295.05 1,279.74 1,345.49
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020
10 11 12
1,598.56 1,638.50 1,684.41 1,670.68 1,601.38 1,392.76
1,468.33 1,585.69 1,631.53 1,551.65 1,369.19 1,083.17
Bloomberg
)
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| ndependent auditor’s report

To: the shareholder and managing directors of Nomura Europe Finance N.V.

Report on the audit of the financial statementsfor the year ended 31 March
2020 included in the annual report

Our opinion
We have audited the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 of Nomura Europe Finance NV., based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of Nomura Europe Finance
NV. asat 31 March 2020, and of its result and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Thefinancia statements comprise:
The statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020
The following statements for the year then ended: the income statement, the statements of comprehensive income, changesin
equity and cash flows
The notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Basis for our opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report.

We are independent of Nomura Europe Finance N.V. in accordance with the Wet toezicht accountantsorganisaties (Wta, Audit firms
supervision act), the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, a regulation with respect to independence) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands.
Furthermore we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Materiality
Materiality JPY 8,550 million (31 March 2019: JPY 8,980 million)
Benchmark applied 0.5% of ‘debt issued and other borrowing’ and ‘financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Explanation We have chosen ‘debt issued and other borrowing’ and ‘financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss as benchmark as we believe the total balance of these accountsis
the most important metric for the users of the financial statements.

We have aso taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material for the users of the
financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the managing directors that misstatements in excess of JPY 427 million, which are identified during the audit, would
be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be reported on qualitative grounds.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financia

statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the managing directors. The key audit matters are not a comprehensive
reflection of all matters discussed.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matters are in line with prior year.

Valuation of derivative financial instruments

Risk

The derivatives portfolio of Nomura Europe Finance NV. comprises of non-listed derivatives where the
values are based on valuation techniques using both market observable (mainly level 2 positions) and non-
market observable (mainly level 3 positions) inputs.

We consider the fair value of derivative financial instruments as disclosed in note 14 and note 24 to the
financial statements as a key audit matter due to the relative size of the related accounts as compared to the
total balance sheet and materiality, and given the inherent complexity of the estimates with aresulting risk for
incorrect valuation of the derivative financia instruments.

Our audit
approach

We have verified the valuation of derivatives by obtaining an understanding of the controlsin place,
evaluating the design and testing the operating effectiveness of these controls. Thisincludes those controls
within the model validation process and the independent price verification process that address the risk of
material misstatement relating to management’ s assessment of the significant inputs and estimates included in
fair value measurement. It also includes the testing of model performance and suitability controls as aresult of
market volatility due to the impact of COVID-19.

Furthermore, we evaluated valuation methodol ogies and tested the most significant valuation inputs by
comparing these inputs to independently sourced market data and other third party sources for non-market
observable inputs. We performed independent testing on fair values of positions held with the support of our
internal valuation specialists. We paid specific attention to the refinement of the fair value methodology,
which is accounted for as change in accounting estimate.

Additionally, we tested the relevant disclosures for accuracy and compl eteness.

Key observations

Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the valuation of derivative financial instruments and
agree with the managing directors assessment of the measurement and the disclosures on derivatives in
accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
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Valuation of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Risk

Nomura Europe Finance NV. issuesfinancia liabilities which as designated at fair value through profit or
loss, where the values are based on valuation techniques using both market observable (mainly level 2
positions) and non-market observable (mainly level 3 positions) inputs.

We consider the fair value of financid liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in
note 20 and note 24 to the financial statements as akey audit matter due to the relative size of the account as
compared to the total balance sheet and materiality, and given the inherent complexity of the estimateswith a
resulting risk for incorrect valuation of the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Our audit
approach

We have verified the valuation of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss by
obtaining an understanding of the controlsin place, evaluating the design and testing the operating
effectiveness of these controls. This includes those controls within the model validation process and the
independent price verification process that address the risk of material misstatement relating to management’s
assessment of the significant inputs and estimates included in fair value measurement. It also includes the
testing of model performance and suitability controls as aresult of market volatility due to the impact of
COVID-19.

Furthermore, we evaluated valuation methodol ogies, tested the most significant valuation inputs by
comparison of these inputs to independently sourced market data and other third party sources for non-market
observable inputs. We performed independent testing on fair values of positions held with the support of our
internal valuation specialists. In addition, we tested the accuracy of the valuation adjustments relating to own
credit risk.

Lastly, we tested the relevant disclosures for accuracy and completeness.

Key observations

Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the valuation of financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss and agree with the managing directors assessment of the measurement and the
disclosures in accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Valuation of loans and advances to affiliates

Risk

Nomura Europe Finance NV. isrequired to record an impairment allowance for expected credit losses for the
loans and advances to &ffiliates. The impairment allowance is based on the expected credit losses associated
with the probability of default in the next 12 months unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, in which case the allowance is based on the probability of default over the expected life of
the instrument.

We consider the valuation of the loans and advances to affiliates as disclosed in note 5 to the financial
statements as a key audit matter due to the size of the loan portfolio and given that an impairment may have a
material effect on the income statement.

Our audit
approach

We have verified the valuation of loans and advances to affiliates by obtaining an understanding of the
impairment process and model. We assessed the impairment methodology and expected credit loss cal culation.
We verified the criteriafor identifying significant increase in credit risk and tested the accuracy of internal
credit ratings.

We assessed the determination of the probability of default including forward-looking information. We
subsequently evaluated management’s impact assessment for the Covid-19 pandemic on expected credit
losses. Furthermore, we recal culated the impairment allowance as per 31 March 2020.

Additionally, we tested the relevant disclosures for accuracy and compl eteness.

Key observations

Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the impairment allowance for expected credit losses
for the loans and advances to affiliates and agree with the managing directors assessment of the expected
credit losses and the disclosures on loans and advances to affiliates in accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
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Emphasis of matter relating to Corona developments

The developments around the Corona (Covid-19) pandemic have a profound impact on people, society and on the economy. This
impacts operational and financial performance of organizations and the assessment of the ability to continue as a going concern. The
impact may continue to evolve. The financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon reflect the conditions at the time of
preparation. The impact of the developments on Nomura Europe Finance NV. isdisclosed in the notes to the financia statementsin
note 5 and the disclosure about [risk management]. We draw attention to these disclosures. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Report on other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, the annual report contains other information that consists of:
The managing directors report
Other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:
Is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements
Contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our audit of the financial
statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains material misstatements. By performing these
procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of
the procedures performed is substantially |ess than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the managing directors report in accordance with
Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Engagement

We were engaged by the managing directors as auditor of Nomura Europe Finance NV. and have operated as statutory auditor for
more than 15 years. The most recent rotation of the signing external auditor was for the audit of the financia statementsfor the year
ended 31 March 2020. Rotation of the signing external auditor is one of our safeguards to maintain our auditor independence.

Description of responsibilitiesfor the financial statements

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with EU-IFRS and Part
9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, management is responsible for such internal control as management determinesis
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for ng the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Based on the financia reporting frameworks mentioned, management should prepare the financial statements using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no
redlistic alternative but to do so. Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objective isto plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit

evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not detect all material errors and
fraud during our audit.
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. The materiality affects the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit, in accordance with
Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements. Our audit included among others:

Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, designing
and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control

Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control

Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management

Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting, and based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. |f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosuresin the financia statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern

Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures

Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation

We communicate with the managing directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We provide the managing directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the managing directors, we determine the key audit matters those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. We describe these mattersin our auditor’ s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, not communicating the matter is in the public
interest.

Amsterdam, 17 July 2020

Ernst & Young AccountantsLLP

P. Sira
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